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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty Fourth Annual General Meeting of the members of Senbo Industries Limited will 
be held on (Saturday), 29th of September, 2018 at 10:00 A.M. at its factory premises at Sonarpur, Karbala, Station Road, 
Kolkata-700 103 to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2018 
together with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Kingshuk Sengupta (DIN: 00329102), who retires by rotation and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-appointment.

Registered office  By order of the Board of Directors

87, Lenin Sarani, Kolkata- 700 013 For Senbo Industries Limited

Phone: 033-2264-1395, 2217-8915/16

Email : senboind@gmail.com

Website: www.senboindustries.co.in

CIN : L24231WB1994PLC063778

 (Paulami Mukherjee)

Date : 14.08.2018 Company Secretary and 
Place : Kolkata Compliance Officer
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Notes :

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting”) is entitled to appoint a 
proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. 
The instrument appointing the proxy should, however, be deposited at the registered office of the Company 
not less than forty-eight hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

 A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more 
than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more 
than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single 
person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

2. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send 
to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their representative to attend and vote on their 
behalf at the Meeting.

3. Brief resume of Directors including those proposed to be appointed/re-appointed, nature of their expertise in 
specific functional areas, names of companies in which they hold directorships and memberships/chairmanships of 
Board Committees, shareholding and relationships between directors inter-se as stipulated under relevant clause 
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges, are provided in the Corporate Governance 
Report forming part of the Annual Report.

4. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is holding maximum shares in the order of 
names will be entitled to vote.

5. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statement are open for inspection by the 
members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days, except Sundays, during business hours up 
to the date of the Meeting.

6. The Company has notified closure of Register of Members and Share Transfer Books from Monday, September 24, 
2018 to Saturday, September 29, 2018 (both days inclusive).

7. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 
(PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, 
requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat 
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company.

8. Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same order of 
names are requested to send the share certificates to Niche Technologies Private Limited, for consolidation into a 
single folio. 

9. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail address for 
receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the Company electronically.

10. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has come out with a circular Nos. 17/2011 dated 21/04/2011 & 18/2011 
dated 29/04/2014 propagating “Green Initiative” encouraging Corporate to serve documents through electronic 
mode. In order to above, those shareholders, who want the Annual Report in electronic mode, are requested to 
send their e-mail address.

11. Corporate Members intending to send their authorised representatives to send a duly certified copy of the Board 
Resolution authorizing their representatives to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

12. Route Map : The Complete particulars of the venue of the meeting including route map and prominent land marks 
for easy identification of the location is enclosed for the convenience of the members. The same has also been 
hosted at the website of the company at www.senboindustries.co.in.

13. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated by its Circular dated 20th April 2018 for 
submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) and Bank details together with an original cancelled cheque 
leaf/attested Bank Pass Book showing the name of Account Holder to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) 
of the Company by all the security holders holding securities in physical form. To facilitate the above, a letter from the 
RTA enclosing a Form where the above particulars are to be provided is being sent with this Notice to the Members 



who hold the shares in physical form. The said Members are requested to promptly submit the required information 
and documents asked for to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

14. SEBI has recently amended Regulation 40 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 by its notification dated 8th June, 2018 providing that except in case of transmission or transposition of 
securities, requests for effecting transfer of securities shall not be processed unless the securities are held in 
dematerialized form with a Depository. This provision shall come into force on the one hundred and eightieth day 
from the date of publication of the notification in the Official Gazette. In view of the above, the Shareholders holding 
shares of the Company in physical mode are requested to get their shares dematerialized at an early date.

15. At the 23rd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on March 22, 2018, the members approved appointment 
of Kothari & Agrawal, Chartered Accountants, (Registration No.- 323424E) as Statutory Auditors of the Company to 
hold office for a period of five years from the conclusion of that Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 28th 
Annual General Meeting, subject to ratification of their appointment by members at every Annual General Meeting if 
so required by the Companies Act 2013. Vide notification dated May 7, 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has 
done away with the requirement of seeking ratification of members for appointment of auditors at every Annual 
General Meeting. Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for ratification of appointment of statutory auditors at 
the 24th Annual General Meeting.

16.   VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS 

 I. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, the Company is 
pleased to provide members facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at 
the Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-voting 
Services. The facility of casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting system from a place other 
than the venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by National Securities Depository Limited 
(NSDL).

 II. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members attending the 
meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting 
through ballot paper. The members who have already cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may 
also attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

 III. The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

  (i) The remote e-voting period commences on 26th September, 2018 (10:00 a.m.) and ends on 28th 
September, 2018 (5:00 p.m.). During this period members of the Company, holding shares either in physical 
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 22nd September, 2018, may cast their vote by 
remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote 
on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

   The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 
below:

   Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

   Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

   Details on Step-1 is mentioned below:

   How to Log-into NSDL e-Voting website?

   1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

   2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
'Shareholders' section.
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Manner of holding shares i.e.

Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical
Your User ID is

a) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your user 
ID is IN300***12******

b) For Members who holds shares in 

demat account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your user ID is 
12**************

c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001***

   3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen.

   Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using 
your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

   4. Your User ID details are given below:

   5. Your password details are given below:

    a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast 
your vote.

    b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 'initial password' 
which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 'initial password', you need to enter the 
'initial password' and the system will force you to change your password.

    c) How to retrieve your 'initial password'?

    (i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 'initial password' is 
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. 
Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the 
.pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your 'User ID' and your 'initial 
password'.

    (ii) If your email ID is not registered, your 'initial password' is communicated to you on your postal 
address.

   6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

   a) Click on “Forgot User Details / Password?” (If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL 
or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

   b) "Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

   c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number / folio number,  your PAN, your name and 
your registered address.

  7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

  8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

  9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.
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  Details on Step 2 are given below:

  How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

  1.  After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting.Click on e-Voting. Then, 
 click on Active Voting Cycles.

  2.  After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding 
shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

  3.  Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote.

  4.  Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

  5.  Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for 
which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

  6.  Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

  7.  You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

  8.  Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

  General Guidelines for shareholders

1.  Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution / Authority letter, etc. with attested specimen signature 
of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 
asit@aklabh.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2.  It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 
your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to 
key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User 
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset 
the password.

3.  In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting 
user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free 
no.: 1800-222-990 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in

You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may be used 
for sending future communication(s).

The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date of 22nd of September, 2018.

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after dispatch of the 
notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 22nd of September, 2018, may obtain the login ID and 
password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or RTA at nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com.

If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at 022 2499 4738 (Mr. Rajiv Ranjan) or at the toll free no.: 
1800-222-990.

A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained 
by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as 
voting at the AGM through ballot paper.

The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow 
voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “Ballot Paper” for all those members who are present at the 
AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast at the 
meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of  at least two witnesses 
not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a 
consolidated scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person 
authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.
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The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company 
www.senboindustries.co.in and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of result by the 
Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the Stock 
Exchanges where shares of the Company are listed.

Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the resolutions set out in the Notice shall be deemed to be 
passed on the date of AGM.

17.  The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date of 22nd of September, 2018.

18.  The notice of Annual General Meeting will be sent to the members, whose names appear in the register of members 
/ depositories as at closing hours of business, on 14th August, 2018.

19. The shareholders shall have one vote per equity share held by them as on the cut-off date of 22nd September, 
2018. The facility of e-voting would be provided once for every folio / client id, irrespective of the number of joint 
holders. 

20. Since the Company is required to provide members the facility to cast their vote by electronic means, shareholders 
of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 22nd 
September, 2018 and not casting their vote electronically, may only cast their vote at the Annual General Meeting.

21. Notice of the AGM along with attendance slip, proxy form along with the process, instructions and the manner of 
conducting e-voting is being sent electronically to all the members whose e-mail IDs are registered with the 
Company / Depository Participant(s). For members who request for a hard copy and for those who have not 
registered their email address, physical copies of the same are being sent through the permitted mode.

22. Investors who became members of the Company subsequent to the dispatch of the Notice / Email and holds the 
shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 22nd September, 2018 are requested to send the written / email communication to 
the Company at senboind@gmail.com by mentioning their Folio No. / DP ID and Client ID to obtain the Login-ID and 
Password for e-voting.

23. Shri Asit Kumar Labh, Practicing Company Secretary, (Membership No.: A32891, Certificate of Practice Number : 
14664 ) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting process and voting at the AGM in a 
fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer will submit, not later than 3 days of conclusion of the AGM, a 
consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman of the Company 
or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting 
forthwith. 

24. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website 
www.senboindustries.co.in and on the website of NSDL. The same will be communicated to the listed stock 
exchanges viz. Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited.

Registered office  By order of the Board of Directors

87, Lenin Sarani, Kolkata- 700 013 For Senbo Industries Limited

Phone: 033-2264-1395, 2217-8915/16

Email : senboind@gmail.com

Website: www.senboindustries.co.in

CIN : L24231WB1994PLC063778

 (Paulami Mukherjee)

Date : 14.08.2018 Company Secretary and 
Place : Kolkata Compliance Officer
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be handed over at the entrance of the Hall)

th24  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Saturday, 29th September, 2018 at 10 A.M.

I/we hereby record my/our presence at the 23rd Annual General Meeting of the Company at its office Karbala, Sonarpur 

Station Road, Kolkata – 700103, on Saturday, September 29, 2018 at 10:00 A.M.

Full Name of the member (in BLOCK LETTERS) : .........................................................................................................

Folio No. .........................................  DP ID No. .................................................... Client ID No...................................

Full Name of Proxy (in BLOCK LETTERS): ....................................................................................................................

Member/ Proxy(s) Signature :  .........................................................................................................................................

NOTES :

 1. Please complete the Folio/DPID-Client ID No. and name of the member or/proxy and sign this Attendance Slip 
and hand it over, duly signed, at the entrance of the Meeting Hall.

 2. Shareholder/ Proxy holder desiring to attend the meeting should bring his/her copy of the Annual Report for 
reference at the meeting.

Member's Folio DP ID- Client ID No. Member's/ Proxy's Name in

BLOCK LETTERS

Member's /Proxy's Signature

SENBO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
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PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 19 (3) of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

24th Annual General Meeting (Saturday, September 29, 2018)

Name of the Company : SENBO INDUSTRIES LTD

Registered Office : 87, Lenin Sarani, Kolkata 700013

CIN : L24231WB1994PLC063778

Name of the member(s) : ______________________________________________________________________

Registered Address : ______________________________________________________________________

Email id : ______________________________________________________________________

Folio No./DP ID-Client ID

No. :

I/We, being the member(s) of ____________________________ shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint

1. Name : ________________________________________________________________

 Address : ________________________________________________________________

 Email Id : ________________________________________________________________

 Signature : ___________________________, or failing him

2. Name : ________________________________________________________________

 Address : ________________________________________________________________

 Email Id : ________________________________________________________________

 Signature : ___________________________, or failing him

3. Name : ________________________________________________________________

 Address : ________________________________________________________________

 Email Id : ________________________________________________________________

 Signature : ___________________________
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As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 24th Annual General Meeting of the 
company, to be held on Saturday, 29th September, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. at Karbala, Sonarpur Station Road, Kolkata – 700 
103 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No.

Ordinary Business

Description of Resolution

For Against

To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements 
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2018 together with the 
Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Kingshuk Sengupta (DIN: 
00329102), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appoinment.

1.

2.

Signed this ___________________day of _____________________, 2018

Signature of Shareholder: _______________________________________

 Signature of 1st Proxy holder Signature of 2nd Proxy holder Signature of 3rd Proxy holder

Note:

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office 
of the Company at 87, Lenin Sarani, Kolkata- 700 013 not less than 48 hours before the commencement of 
the Meeting.

Route Map 

Affix
Revenue

Stamp
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(ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE FOR THE 24th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
OF THE COMPANY TO BE HELD ON 29th SEPTEMBER, 2018)

1. Name & Registered Address
 of Sole/First named Member:   
       
2.    Joint Holders Name (If any): 

3.   Folio No. / DP ID & Client ID:  

4.   No. of Equity Shares Held :  

Dear Shareholder,

Subject: Process and manner for availing E-voting facility

Pursuant to Provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 
and Regulation 44 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide E-voting facility to the 
members to cast their votes electronically on all resolutions proposed to be considered at the Annual General Meeting 
(AGM) to be held on Saturday, 29th Sepetember, 2018 at 10:00 A.M. at Karbala, Sonarpur Station Road, P.O.:-
Narendrapur Kolkata- 700 103 and at any adjournment thereof. 

The Company has engaged the services of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) to provide the e-voting facility. 

The e-voting facility is available at the link https://www.evoting.nsdl.com.

The Electronic Voting Particulars are set out below:

EVEN
(E-Voting Even Number)

User ID PAN / Sequence No.

109584

The E-voting facility will be available during the following voting period:

Remote e-Voting starts on Remote e-Voting ends on

26th September, 2018 at 10:00 A.M. (IST) 28th September, 2018 at 5:00 P.M. (IST)

Please thoroughly read the instructions mentioned in the Notes of the AGM Notice before exercising your vote.

 By Order of the Board
 For Senbo Industries Limited

 
 (Paulami Mukherjee)
Place: Kolkata Company Secretary and
Date: 14th August, 2018 Compliance Officer 
  
Encl:  AGM Notice / Attendance Slip / Proxy Form
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dear Shareholders,
Your Directors have pleasure to present the Twenty Forth Annual Report together with the Audited Statement of Accounts 
of Senbo Industries Limited for the year ended March 31, 2018

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
The summarized financial results of your Company for the year are given in the table below.

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
 (Rs.) (Rs.)

Profit / (Loss) before Finance Charges, Depreciation (8,54,246) (14,68,473)

Depreciation and Amortization 14,96,268 14,93,268

Finance Charges 6,015 21,078

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items (19,63,243) (29,82,819)

Tax Expenses of earlier year 3,84,271 2,50,308

Profit / (Loss) from Continuing operation (23,47,514) (32,33,127)

Profit / ( Loss) for the period (23,47,514) (32,33,127)

Accumulated (Loss) brought forward (37,47,76,325) (37,15,43,198)

(Loss) carried forward to Balance Sheet (37,71,23,839) (37,47,76,325)

BUSINESS REVIEW / STATE OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS
Inspite of its best outlook the Company has not been able to find out any business avenue. The factory at Sonarpur can be 
re-opened only after identification of new and profitable ventures by the management.

INDUSTRY SCENARIO
The Board has been constantly keeping a close watch on the various industries and sectors of the economy in order to 
identify the business opportunities. However, no workable area of new venture could be found out as yet by your Board.

OUTLOOK
The prospect of the Company depends on restart of the business activities of its factory at Sonarpur with new projects and 
full utilization of the unused facilities which has remained idle for the last few years.

RESERVES
Due to loss during the year no amount is proposed to be transferred to reserves.

DIVIDEND
The Company has not declared any dividend during the financial year.

CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE
The investment properties of the Company at Sonarpur has remained mortgaged as collateral security with a bank to 
secure the credit facilities of Senbo Engineering Ltd., a group company which had earlier provided substantial loans to the 
Company. The said credit facilities taken from Oriental Bank of Commerce by Senbo Engineering Limited have turned 
into Non Performing Asset on 31st January 2018.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 
WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT 
There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurring between 
March 31, 2018 and the date of this Report of the Directors.



 Date of the meeting No. of Directors attended the meeting

 30.05.2017 7

 14.08.2017 7

 05.09.2017 7

 14.11.2017 6

 14.02.2018 6

SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATES
Your company does not have any Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associates.

SHARE CAPITAL
The paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2018 was Rs. 106,202,000/-. During the year under review the 
company has not issued any shares or any convertible instruments.

DETAILS OF BOARD MEETINGS
During the year five (5) number of Board meetings were held, details of which are given below:

CAPITAL/ FINANCE 

As on 31st March, 2018, the share capital structure of the Company is as follows:

Particulars Amount(Rs.)

Equity Share Capital

Issued Share Capital : 1,10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each  110,000,000

Subscribed Share Capital : 1,10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each  110,000,000

Subscribed & Fully paid up : 1,06,20,200 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each  106,202,000

Subscribed but not fully paid up : 3,79,800 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each    2,277,000

Total Share capital 108,479,000

*Non-Current liability of Rs 191,800,000 has been treated as Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of 
Rs. 100/- each.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014, extract of the annual return is Annexed as Annexure 1.

Committees of the Board
The details of composition of the Committees of the Board of Directors are as under:-

 a. AUDIT COMMITTEE

 During the year, the Committee had met on 30.05.2017, 14.08.2017, 14.11.2017 & 14.02.2018. 

1. Dr. Shaibal Kumar Chakraborty Chairman

2. Shri Bimal Kanti Choudhury* Member
 (Resigned on 14th November, 2017)

3. Shri Badal Modak Member

4. Shri Harijiban Banerjee Member
 (Appointed on 14th November, 2017)

12
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 VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has a vigil mechanism named Fraud and Risk Management (FRM) Policy to deal with instance of fraud and 
mismanagement, if any. The FRM Policy ensures that strict confidentiality is maintained whilst dealing with concerns and 
also that no discrimination will be meted out to any person for a genuinely raised concern. The policy has been uploaded 
in the website of the company at www.senboindustries.co.in. 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirement clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors 
confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along 
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c)  the directors took proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing 
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

(e) the directors laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal 
financial controls were adequate and operating effectively;

(f) the directors devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of transactions entered into with the Related Parties are enclosed as Annexure 2.

STATUTORY AUDITORS, THEIR REPORT  AND NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In the last 23rd Annual General Meeting held on 22nd March, 2018, M/s. Agrawal & Kothari (Regn No: 323424E), 
Chartered Accountants were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five (5) years.

EXPLANATION TO THE QUALIFICATIONS CONTAINED IN THE AUDITORS' REPORT

The observations made in the Auditors' Report have been duly covered in the relevant Notes to the Financial Statements 
which form part of the Accounts and are self explanatory.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT 

In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there under, R. N. Goswami & Co., (CP No.: 2267) Company 
Secretaries were appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company. The report of the Secretarial Auditors is enclosed as 
Annexure 3 to this report. The report is self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Your Directors are seized with the problem of closure of the factory for the last few years and the threat of slow 
deterioration of the value of some of the immovable properties of the Company. These two issues are the two risks the 
management is facing now.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Dr. Shaibal Kumar Chakraborty, Shri Pradip Kumar Chakravorty, Smt Sanghamitra Sen and Shri Badal Modak are the 
Independent Directors on the Board of your Company.  In the opinion of the Board and as confirmed by these Directors, 
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they fulfill the conditions specified in section 149 of the Act and the Rules made thereunder about their status as 
Independent Directors of the Company. However Smt. Sanghamitra Sen has expressed her desire not to continue as a 
director of the Company. Accordingly the Board has accepted her resignation in the Board Meeting dated 15.07.2018.

COMPANY'S POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

Remuneration of the Executive Directors, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), the Company Secretary, and immediately 
one level below Senior Employees of the Company is determined by the Board of Directors ('Board') of the Company 
within the broad policy formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprising only Non-Executive 
Directors and in conformity with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and also subject to the required 
approval of the Shareholders in their General Meeting. 

The Directors, considering the financial crunch of the Company, have unanimously resolved to waive the fees for 
attending the meetings of the Company including the past dues of the fees.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements are commensurate with the size and nature of 
business of the Company.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Shri Kingshuk Sengupta, Director retire by rotation at the forthcoming 24th Annual General Meeting and being eligible, 
offer themselves for reappointment.  

The KMP of the Company as on 31/03/2018 are as follows:-

1.  Chief Executive Officer (CEO): Shri. Kajal Sengupta 

2.  Company Secetary (CS): Ms. Paulami Mukherjee 

The company is looking for a suitable candidate for the post of Chief Financial Officer (CFO).

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 

There was no amount required to be transfered to IEPF.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposits from public in terms of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance and Management Discussion & Analysis Report, which form an integral part of this Report, 
are set out as Annexure-4, together with the Certificate from the Auditors of the Company regarding compliance with the 
requirements of Corporate Governance as stipulated in SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 197(12) AND RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION 

OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

Information in accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the 
Companies (Appointment of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended, regarding employee is given in Annexure-
5 forming part of the Directors' Report.

DETAILS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO

(a) Conservation of energy 

 Since the factory is closed and there was no production during the financial year.  The consumption of 
energy during the year was very low. However, the management has taken utmost care in conserving energy 
and power in order to keep the expenses to the minimum level.

(b) Technology absorption

 As there was no production or any sort of operation in the factory during the financial year there is no question 
of technology absorption.



15

(c) Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

 During the year, there was neither any outgo nor any earning of the foreign exchange.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee laid down the policy and process of evaluation of Board of Directors. Under 
this policy a set of parameters to be used in the evaluation process has been determined for:

i. Self evaluation of the Board Members.

ii. Evaluation of Non-Independent Directors' performance by Independent Directors.

iii. Assessment of quality, quantity and timeliness of information to the Board.

Using the parameters mentioned above and in accordance with Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by SEBI 
dated 05.01.2017, the evaluation of the Board Members was carried out.

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 27.03.2018 to evaluate performance of the Chairman of the 
Board, the Directors and the Board as a whole.

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENT

The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments have been provided in the notes to the financial Statements of the 
Company.

LISTING

The shares of the company have been listed in Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE Ltd) and Calcutta Stock Exchange 
Limited (CSE Ltd). 

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

In terms of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company 
has an internal complaints committee in place, which entertains the complaints made by any aggrieved woman.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of assistance and co-operation received from bankers, lenders, 
suppliers, customers, Govt. authorities, employees and other stake holders.

For and on behalf of the Board
Senbo Industries Limited

 (Kingshuk Sengupta)  (Harijiban Banerjee)
 Director  Director
 DIN: 00329102  DIN: 00627508

thDate : 14  August, 2018
Place :  Kolkata   
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Annexure 1

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

stAs on the financial year ended on 31  March, 2018

of

SENBO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
[Pursuant to Section 92(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

 i) CIN : L24231WB1994PLC063778

 ii) Registration Date : 30/06/1994

 iii) Name of the Company : SENBO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

 iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company : INDIAN NON-GOVERNMENT  COMPANY

 v) Address of the Registered Office and contact details : 87, LENIN SARANI, KOLKATA- 700 013

 vi) Whether listed company : YES

 vii) Name, Address and contact details of (RTA) : NICHE TECHNOLOGIES PVT. LTD.
      D-511, BAGREE MARKET,
      71, B.R.B. BASU ROAD, KOLKATA- 700 001  

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

 All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

Sl. No. Name and Description NIC Code of the % to total turnover
 of main products /services Product/ service of the company

1. NIL N/A NIL

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

Sl. No. Name And Address CIN/GLN Holding/ % of shares  Applicable
 of the Company  Subsidiary/ Associate held Section

1. N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

IV.  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

 I. Category-wise Share Holding

% Change
during

the year

 Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end of
 Shareholders beginning of the year the year

  Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of
     Total Shares    Total Shares

A. Promoters

1. Indian

(a) Individual/HUF 50,25,200 0 50,25,200 45.684 50,25,200 0 50,25,200 45.684

(b) Central Govt 

(c)  State Govt (s) 

0.000
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(d) State Govt(s) 

(e) Venture Capital Funds 

(f) Insurance Companies 

(g) FIIs 
(h) Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds  
(i) Others (specify)          
Sub-total (B)(1) 3,55,800 14,900 3,70,700 3.370 3,55,800 14,900 3,70,700 3.370  

2.Non-Institutions          

(a) Bodies Corp.          
(i) Indian 5,02,643 1,76,500 6,79,143 6.174 5,02,643 1,76,500 6,79,143 6.174 0.000 
(ii) Overseas
(b) Individuals  
(i)Individual shareholders
holding nominal share 
capital upto Rs. 1 lakh  

(ii) Individual  
shareholders  
holding nominal share  
capital in excess of  
Rs. 1 lakh 
(c) Others (specify)   

 

2,21,253

 

6,78,045

 

8,99,298

 

8.175

 

2,21,569

 

6,78,045

 

8,99,614

 

8.178

 

0.003

 

16,000 26,18,600 26,34,600 23.951 16,000 26,18,600 26,34,600 23.951  0.000 

        

(d) Bodies Corp. 11,76,100 0 11,76,100 10.692 11,76,100 0 11,76,100 10.692 0.000 
(e) Banks / FI          
(f) Any Other           
 Sub-total (A) (1) 62,01,300 0 62,01,300 56.375 62,01,300 0 62,01,300 56.375 0.000 

(2) Foreign 
(a) NRIs - 
Individuals 
(b) Other  
Individuals 
(c)   Bodies Corp. 
(d) Banks / FI 
(e) Any Others  
Sub-total (A) (2) 

Total 
shareholding of 
Promoter (A) = 
(A)(1)+(A)(2) 

62,01,300 0 62,01,300 56.375 62,01,300  62,01,300 56.375  

B. Public 
Shareholding 

         

1. Institutions          

(a) Mutual Funds  14,900 14,900 0.135  14,900 14,900 0.135  
(b) Banks / FI 3,55,800 3,55,800 3.235 3,55,800  3,55,800 3.235  
(c)  Central Govt(s)

0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 0.000

0 0.000

0 0 0.000
0 0.0000

0.000

1. NRI 

2. Overseas Corporate
Bodies

1,42,139 68,200 2,10,339 1.912 1,51,139 59,200 2,10,339 1.912 0.000 
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C. Shares held by 
Custodian for  
GDRs & ADRs  

Grand Total (A+B+C)  74,43,755 35,56,245 110,00,000 100.000 110,00,000 0.000

3. Foreign Nationals
4. Clearing Members
5. Trusts
6. Foreign Bodies - D.R.

Sub-total (B)(2)

2,620 2,6200 0.024 2,304 0 2,304 0.021 -0.003

0.0000.0182,00002,0000.0182,0002,000 0

8,86,655 35,41,345 44,28,000 40.255 8,95,655 35,32,345 44,28,000 40.255 0.000

Total Public
Shareholding
(B) = (B)(1)+(B)(2) 12,42,455 35,56,245 47,98,700 43.625 12,51,455 35,47,245 47,98,700 43.625 0.000

 74,52,755 35,47,245 100.000

 1. Eleena Sengupta 11,70,100 10.637 0.000 11,70,100 10.637 0.000 0.000

 2. Embicon Engineering Pvt. Ltd. 9,25,00 8.409 0.000 9,25,000 8.409 0.000 0.000

 3. Kajal Sengupta 21,08,200 19.165 0.000 21,08,200 19.165 0.000 0.000

 4. Kingshuk Sengupta 1,22,900 1.117 0.000 1,22,900 1.117 0.000 0.000

 5. Samiran Bhattacharjee 1,19,900 1.090 0.000 1,19,900 1.090 0.000 0.000

 6. Sayantanee Sengupta 12,27,000 11.155 0.000 12,27,000 11.155 0.000 0.000

 7. Senbo Engineering Limited 2,51,100 2.283 0.000 2,51,100 2.283 0.000 0.000

 8. Sushanta Bhattacharjee 2,77,100 2.519 0.000 2,77,100 2.519 0.000 0.000

  TOTAL 62,01,300 56.375 0.000 62,01,300 56.375 0.000 0.000

No. of
Shares

% of total
Shares
of the

company

% of
Shares

Pledged /
encum-
bered
to total
shares

No. of
Shares

% of total
Shares
of the

company

Sl
No.

Shareholder's Name
Shareholding at the beginning

of the year
Share holding at the end

of the year
% of

change
in share
holding

during the
year

% of
Share

 Pledged/
encum-
bered
to total
shares

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

ParticularsSl.
No.

% of total shares
of the company

No. of
shares

No. of
shares

% of total shares
of the company

1. ELEENA SENGUPTA        

  a) At the Beginning of the Year 11,70,100 10.637    

  b) Changes during the year                               [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

  c) At the End of the Year     11,70,100 10.637

2. EMBICON ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMITED

 a) At the Beginning of the Year 9,25,000 8.409

 b) Changes during the year                              [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

 c) At the End of the Year     9,25,000 8.409

(iii) Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
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Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

ParticularsSl.
No.

% of total shares
of the company

No. of
shares

No. of
shares

% of total shares
of the company

3. KAJAL SENGUPTA        

  a) At the Beginning of the Year 21,08,200 19.165    

  b) Changes during the year                              [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

  c) At the End of the Year     21,08,200 19.165

4. KINGSHUK SENGUPTA        

  a) At the Beginning of the Year 1,22,900 1.117    

  b) Changes during the year                            [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

  c) At the End of the Year     1,22,900 1.117

5. SAMIRAN BHATTACHARJEE        

  a) At the Beginning of the Year 1,19,900 1.090    

  b) Changes during the year                           [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

  c) At the End of the Year     1,19,900 1.090

6. SAYANTANEE SENGUPTA        

  a) At the Beginning of the Year 1,22,7000 11.155    

  b) Changes during the year                          [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

  c) At the End of the Year     1,22,7000 11.155

7. SENBO ENGINEERING LIMITED        

  a) At the Beginning of the Year 2,51,100 2.283    

  b) Changes during the year                           [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

  c) At the End of the Year     2,51,100 2.283

8. SUSHANTA BHATTACHARJEE        

  a) At the Beginning of the Year 2,77,100 2.519    

  b) Changes during the year                           [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

  c) At the End of the Year     2,77,100 2.519

 T O T A L 62,01,300 56.375 62,01,300 56.375

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

ParticularsSl.
No.

% of total shares
of the company

No. of
shares

No. of
shares

% of total shares
of the company

1 AMIT AGARWALLA        

  a) At the Beginning of the Year 1,53,700 1.397

 b) Changes during the year                                        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

  c) At the End of the Year     1,53,700 1.397

2 ASHIM DAS        

  a) At the Beginning of the Year 1,97,100 1.792    

  b) Changes during the year                                        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

  c) At the End of the Year     1,97,100 1.792

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders
(other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
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Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

ParticularsSl.
No.

% of total shares
of the company

No. of
shares

No. of
shares

% of total shares
of the company

3 BHASKAR SENGUPTA        

  a) At the Beginning of the Year 1,62,000 1.473    

  b) Changes during the year                                           [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

  c) At the End of the Year     1,62,000 1.473

4 BIJAY KUMAR JENA

 a) At the Beginning of the Year 1,98,700 1.806    

  b) Changes during the year                                          [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

  c) At the End of the Year     1,98,700 1.806

5 NATIONAL INSURANCE CO. LTD        

  a) At the Beginning of the Year 2,50,000 2.273    

  b) Changes during the year                                           [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

  c) At the End of the Year     2,50,000 2.273

6 NAVOJIT DEB RAY        

  a) At the Beginning of the Year 1,89,300 1.721    

  b) Changes during the year                                           [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

  c) At the End of the Year     1,89,300 1.721

7 PROSENJIT DASGUPTA        

  a) At the Beginning of the Year 2,15,000 1.955    

  b) Changes during the year                                           [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

  c) At the End of the Year     215000 1.955

8 SARBARI CHAKRABORTY        

  a) At the Beginning of the Year 1,98,300 1.803    

  b) Changes during the year                                           [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

  c) At the End of the Year     1,98,300 1.803

9 TAPAS SAHA        

  a) At the Beginning of the Year 1,98,600 1.805    

  b) Changes during the year                                           [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

  c) At the End of the Year     1,98,600 1.805

10 WEST BENGAL INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

  a) At the Beginning of the Year 5,00,000 4.545    

  b) Changes during the year                                           [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

  c) At the End of the Year     5,00,000 4.545

  T O T A L 2,26,2700 20.570 2,26,2700 20.570
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Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

ParticularsSl.
No.

% of total shares
of the company

No. of
shares

No. of
shares

% of total shares
of the company

1. Kajal Sengupta - Chief Executive Officer         

  a) At the Beginning of the Year 21,08,200 19.165

 b) Changes during the year                        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

  c) At the End of the Year     21,08,200 19.165  

2. Kingshuk Sengupta -Non-Executive Promoter Director       

  a) At the Beginning of the Year 1,22,900 1.117    

  b) Changes during the year                        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

  c) At the End of the Year     1,22,900 1.117

3. Pradip Kumar Chakravorty - Independent Director       

  a) At the Beginning of the Year 2,000 0.018 

  b) Changes during the year                        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

  c) At the End of the Year    2000 0.018 

4. Dr. Shaibal Kumar Chakraborty- Independent Director   

 a) At the Beginning of the Year Nil Nil Nil Nil

 b) Changes during the year                        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

 c) At the End of the Year    

5. Badal Modak- Independent Director    

  At the beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

 b) Changes during the year                        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

 c) At the End of the Year    

6. Sanghamitra Sen- Independent & Woman Director   

  At the beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

 b) Changes during the year                        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

 c) At the End of the Year    

7. Harijiban Banerjee - Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director  

 a) At the Beginning of the Year Nil Nil Nil Nil

 b) Changes during the year                        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

 c) At the End of the Year    

8. Paulami Mukherjee - Company Secretary    

 a) At the Beginning of the Year Nil Nil Nil Nil

 b) Changes during the year                        [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

 c) At the End of the Year

(v). Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
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NILNet Change

NIL i) Principal Amount

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

NIL ii) Interest due but not paid 

 

 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL

NIL

NIL 

NIL 

 NIL

 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

 

 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL

NIL

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

 

NIL 
NIL

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

Total
Indebtedness

DepositsSecured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

 

 NIL

NIL

 

 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

 
 

 

 
 

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid
 

iii) Interest accrued but not due
 

Total (i+ii+iii)

• Addition

• Reduction

 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year 

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
 

 
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

VI. REMUNERATION OF. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

 A. Remuneration to Managing Director/ Whole-time Director and/ or Manager

  No remuneration or salaries were paid to any director in any manner whatsoever during the financial year.

 B. Remuneration to other directors

  No remuneration or salaries were paid to any director in any manner whatsoever during the financial year. 

  And as for the sitting fees to Independent Directors for attending the Board Meetings and its committees, the 
same have been voluntarily given up by them in the wake of financial crisis facing by the Company with effect 
from 12th February, 2016.

 C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER / WTD

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

1 Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section
     17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

 
 

 
 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of Income-tax
      Act, 1961

 
  

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
     17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 

  

2 Stock Option

3 Sweat Equity

4 Commission 
- as % of profit 
-

5 Others, please specify

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

 
 

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

 
 

Total

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

CEO

 
 

 NIL

CFO

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

 

 
 

NIL

NIL

2.33 lakhs 2.33 lakhs

Company Secretary Total (Rs.)

2.33 lakhs 2.33 lakhs

NIL

NIL

NIL

 others, specify...
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Section of the
Companies Act

Brief
Description

Details of Penalty /
Punishment /
Compounding
fees imposed

Authority
[RD / NCLT /

COURT]

Appeal
made, if
any (give
Details)

Type

A. COMPANY

 Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

 Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

 Compounding             NIL            NIL NIL NIL NIL

B. DIRECTORS

 Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

 Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

 Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

 Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

 Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

 Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL



 S. No. Particulars  Information

 (a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Senbo Engineering Limited having 
four common directors and two 
common promoters

 (b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Taking godown property on rent 
from Senbo Industries Limited

 (c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions 12 months

 (d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions Rent of Rs. 2,25,000/- per quarter
  including the value, if any commenced from 1st April, 2017

   90% of the Electricity charges of 
the rented space will be borne by  
Senbo Engineering Ltd.

 (e) Date(s) of approval by the Board 30.05.2017

 (f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

For and on behalf of the Board
Senbo Industries Limited

 (Harijiban Banerjee)  (Kingshuk Sengupta)
 Director  Director
 DIN: 00627508  DIN: 00329102thDate : 14  August, 2018

Place :  Kolkata   
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I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Senbo Industries Limited, (hereinafter called the Company).  Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 
expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Senbo Industries Limited, books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, 
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2018,  complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Senbo 
Industries Limited, for the financial year ended on 31.03.2018, according to the provisions of: 

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder.

II. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the Rules made thereunder  

III.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed  thereunder;            

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (FEMA was not 

applicable during the audit period): (No foreign exchange earnings or outgo was recorded).

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992 ('SEBI Act') to the extent applicable to the Company:

 a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).  

 b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; (Not 

Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period). 

 c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2009; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period). 

 d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 

Purchase Scheme) Guidelines 1999; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

 e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not 

Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

 f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; ( Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd is 

acting as Registrar & Share Transfer Agent , no fresh shares were issued during the financial year). 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year ended 31 March 2018)

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To the Members,
Senbo Industries  Limited
87, Lenin Sarani, Kolkata 700013
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 g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009: (Listing with 

Calcutta Stock Exchange remain suspended ).

 h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations 1998; (Not Applicable 

to the Company during the Audit Period).

 VI. The Company was not engaged in the business of Non- banking Financial Institution, therefore registration 
from the Reserve bank of India was not required.

  I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

  i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. (Secretarial Standard was 
complied with during audit period.)

The shares of the company are listed with the BSE and with the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited. Trading with Calcutta 
Stock Exchange remains suspended. The company has not yet paid the Annual Listing fee of BSE Limited for the financial 
year under audit). 

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with proper balance of Non- Executive and Independent Directors. 
Mr. Kajal Sengupta is acting as Chief Executive Officer. Smt. Sanghamitra Sen was appointed as woman director on the 
Board and she continued during the financial year 2017-2018. Ms. Paulami Mukherjee was appointed as Company  
Secretary and Compliance Officer on 14.02.2018 on resignation of Sri Rahul Kumar Sigh, Company Secretary on 
08.01.2018. There was no CFO during the financial year 2017-2018.

Adequate Notice was given to all Directors to schedule the Board meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
send at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining  further information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. (System to improve as per the 
Act, including publication of notice in newspaper as per listing agreement.)

During the audit period 5 (five) meeting of the Board of Directors were held. The Company held 4 (four) Audit Committee 
Meetings. Annual general Meeting for the year 2017 was held on 22.03.2018. All decisions at the above Meetings were 
carried out unanimously.

I further report that there are adequate system and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operation of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, and regulations and guidelines 
except the point noted.

I further report that during the Audit Period the company has not made any:

i. Public/Right/Preferential/Issue of Shares/debentures/sweat equity etc.
ii. Redemption/Buyback of Securities.
iii. Merger/Amalgamation/reconstruction etc.
iv. Foreign Technical Collaborations. 

For R. N. GOSWAMI & CO.

Company Secretaries

Sd/-
R. N. Goswami

Proprietor
FCS. 1918, CP. No. 2267

Place: Kolkata
  
Dated: 10.08.2018       



Annexure- 4

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Senbo Industries Limited is committed to the objectives of the Company while ensuring accountability in the exercise of 
power and patronage conferred upon it. The Company is further committed to ensure compliance with the code of 
Corporate Governance to enhance and protect the interest of all the shareholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board of Directors is regulated by the relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Company's Articles of Association.

As on 31st March, 2018 the Board of Directors consists of six Directors. The Board has required combination of Non-
executive, promoters and Independent Directors. The Board comprises of six directors amongst them two are non-
executive and non-independent and the other four are independent directors. Amongst the non-executive and non-
independent directors one is a promoter director. 

The Board has four Independent Directors i.e. Dr.Shaibal Kumar Chakraborty, Shri Pradip Kumar Chakravorty, Shri 
Badal Modak and Smt. Sanghamitra Sen and the first three will hold office till 30th September, 2019 and Smt. 
Sanghamitra Sen will hold office till 30th September, 2020. However Smt. Sanghamitra Sen has expressed her desire not 
to continue as a director of the Company. Accordingly the Board has accepted her resignation in the Board Meeting dated 
15.07.2018.

The Company has not entered into any material significant transaction with non-executive and non-independent 
Directors of the Company. None of the directors are related to each other. 

BOARD MEETING

During the year under review five Board meetings were held on  30th May, 2017, 14th August, 2017, 5th September,2017, 
14th November, 2017 and on 14th February, 2018 respectively.

The Company has been suffering from acute financial crisis, as a result of which the company was not able to pay the 
custodian fees, and the Annual General Meeting was held on 22nd March, 2018 and the company will approach NCLT for 
compounding of the offence. 

The composition of the Board of Directors and their attendance at the Board Meetings during the year and at the Annual 
general Meeting and the number of other Directorship and Board Committee Membership / Chairmanship are as follows:

Name of Directors

Shri Kingshuk Sengupta Non-executive Director 5 Yes 1 - -             

Shri Harijiban Banerjee Non-executive Director 5 Yes 1 - -             

Shri Bimal Kanti Choudhury Non-executive Director 3 No 1 - -             

Dr. Shaibal Kumar Chakraborty Independent Director 5 No Nil - -             

Shri Pradip Kumar

Chakravorty Independent Director 5 Yes Nil - -             

Shri Badal Modak Independent Director 5 Yes 2 - -             

Smt. Sanghamitra Sen Women Independent

 Director 5 Yes 1 - -             

Category

Attendance

Board
Meeting

Last
AGM

Number of other Directorship &
Committee Membership / Chairmanship

Committee
Chairmanship 

Other
Directorship 

Committee
Membership 

*Smt. Sanghamitra Sen has expressed her desire not to continue as a director of the Company. Accordingly the Board has 
accepted her resignation in the Board Meeting dated 15.07.2018. Shri Bimal Kanti Choudhury has resigned as a director 
from the Board and the same was accepted by the Board in the Board Meeting dated 14.11.2017.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises of two Independent Directors and one Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director. 
The two Independent Directors are Dr. Shaibal Kumar Chakraborty, and Shri Badal Modak, and Shri Harijiban Banerjee 
is the sole Non-executive Non-Independent Director of the Committee. 

During the year under review four Audit Committee meetings were held, the dates of those meetings being on 30th May, 
2017, 14th August, 2017, 14th November, 2017, 14th February, 2018. The attendance at the meetings of the Audit 
Committee is given below:

Name of Members Designation No. of Meetings attended 

Dr. Shaibal Kr. Chakraborty Chairman      4

Shri Bimal Kanti Choudhury* Member      3
(Resigned on 14th November, 2017)

Shri Badal Modak Member      4

Shri Harjiban Banerjee Member 2
(Appointed on 14th November, 2017)

The terms of reference and the scope of surveillance of the Audit Committee include 

a) Ensuring compliance and improving efficiency of internal control system as well as internal audit.

b) Reviewing of the Company's financial performance at regular intervals as well as overseeing of the Company's 

financial reporting process and concurring Financial Statements before submission to the Board.

c)  Reviewing scope and adequacy of audit functions, both internal and statutory.

d)  Examination of the financial statement and the auditors' report thereon.

e)  Disclosing of financial information while ensuring its correctness, sufficiency, credibility and its compliance with 

Stock Exchange Regulations as well as other legal requirements.

f)  Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company.

g) Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process.

h) Reviewing finding of audit observations and critical concerns like suspected fraud or irregularity, or failure of internal 

control systems and reporting such matters to the Board.

i) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties.

j)  Reviewing of the Financial and Risk Management Policies of the Company.

k)  Reviewing from time to time the Company's statutory and contractual obligations as well as reasons for defaults 

therein, if any.

l) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

m) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary.

n) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

o) Monitoring the end use of funds, if any raised through public offers and related matters.

No personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee for any matter covered under vigil mechanism/ whistle 

blower policy of the company.  The Audit Committee has carried out its responsibilities in line with the above terms of 

reference as far as possible as the factory of the Company has been under closure for more than 7 years.    

Familiarization Programme – In terms of the provisions of Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations, the Company is 
required to develop a Familiarization Programme for the Independent Directors of the Company. Accordingly, the 
Company has put in place a Familiarization Programme for all newly inducted independent directors. The same are 
available on the website of the Company www.senboindustries.co.in.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of three Independent Directors, viz, Shri Pradip Kumar 

Chakravorty, Shri Badal Modak and Dr. Shaibal Kumar Chakraborty. The Committee, headed by Shri Pradip Kumar 
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REMUNERATION TO DIRECTOR

The Company do not have any executive director on its board. The non-executive and independent director does not 

receive any remuneration/sitting fees etc from the company. 

SHARES HELD BY NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

As on 31st March, 2017, there are six non-executive directors on the Board. The following table shows the number of 

shares held by Non-executive directors:

S. No.  Name of the Director No. of Shares Held % of Total Shares 

1. Kingshuk Sengupta 1,22,900 1.117% 

2. Harijiban Banerjee Nil Nil 

3. Pradip Kumar Chakravorty 2,000 0.018% 

4. Dr. Shaibal Kumar Chakraborty Nil Nil 

5. Badal Modak Nil Nil 

6. Sanghamitra Sen Nil Nil 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Shareholders' Committee comprising of three Independent Directors viz, Dr. Shaibal Kumar Chakraborty, Shri Badal 
Modak and Shri Pradip Kumar Chakraborty.

The terms of reference of the Committee are to look into redressal of investors' complaints like transfer of shares, non-
receipt of annual report, etc and to oversee the performance of the Registrar and Share Transfer agent. The details of 
complaints received and attended to during the year are given below:

No. of Shareholders' complaints received so far : Nil

No. of complaints pending / unresolved : Nil

GENERAL BODY MEETING

The last three Annual General Meeting of the company were held as indicated below:

YEAR VENUE DATE TIME

2014 - 15

2015 - 16

4-00 P.M.

Registered Office at
87, Lenin Sarani, Kolkata- 700 013 28th September, 2015

4-00 P.M.
Registered Office at
87, Lenin Sarani, Kolkata- 700 013 29th December, 2016

Chakravorty, has been vested with powers to determine the terms of appointment of Executive Directors, CEO, CFO, CS, 

etc. and the policy on remuneration package of the Executive Directors and revision in sitting fees as paid to the Directors 

for attending meetings of the Board or Committees thereof.  However no directors have been paid any remuneration or 

sitting fees during the year considering the financial position of the Company.

 *Smt. Sanghamitra Sen has expressed her desire not to continue as a director of the Company. Accordingly the Board

has accepted his resignation in the Board Meeting dated 15.07.2018.

2016 - 17 10-00 A.M.
Factory office at Sonarpur
Station Road Kolkata- 700 103 22nd March, 2018
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 YEAR DATE OF MEETING NO. OF SPECIAL SUBJECT OF RESOLUTION

    RESOLUTION PASSED

2015 - 16 29.09.2016 1

Special Resolutions passed at aforesaid Annual General Meetings.

1.  Ratification of appointment and payment of 
managerial remuneration of Shri Hirak 
Dasgupta.

*Neither any resolution was passed in F.Y. 2016-17 nor any resolution is proposed to be passed in the current financial 
year through Postal Ballot. 

DISCLOSURE

a)  During the year, there was no significant transaction of material nature with the Promoters, Directors or the 
Management, or relations that might have any potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

b)  The Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges/ SEBI and Statutory Authority on all 
matters related to capital markets during the year. Fines and penalties have been imposed under Regulation 31 of 
SEBI LODR, 2015 for late submission of the shareholding pattern for September and December quarter' 2017, 
Regulation 34 for late submission of Annual Report for the year 2016-17 and Regulation 33 for late submission of 
Financial Results for the June Quarter 2017.

c)  The Audit Committee allows employees to complain about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or 
malpractices in the Company without fear of reprisal.

d)  The Mandatory Requirements on Corporate Governance have been fully complied with and Non-Mandatory 
Requirements, viz., Training of Board Members, Mechanism for evaluating Non-Executive Board Members etc. are 
yet to be implemented.

e) Policy on dealing with Related Party Transaction has been uploaded at company's website 
www.senboindustries.co.in.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1.  INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

 Once a new Project is identified, it will be possible to discuss both structure and development of the Project.

2.   OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

 Many opportunities are open to the Company. Management has been making continuous study on new projects. 
Selection of a Project is always subject to taking risk. Both opportunities & threats are associated with a new line of 
activity. Similarly, a number of contingencies are involved in implementation of a new project.

3.  SEGMENT-WISE / PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE

 Your Company is in search of a suitable project keeping in mind of its past experience. Therefore, reporting under 
sector wise performance does not arise at this stage.

4.  OUTLOOK

 The prospect of the Company largely depends on selection of an appropriate project and its techno-commercial 
viability. 

5.  RISKS & CONCERNS

 The major concern of your Company relates to earning a fair margin of profit. Other aspects of concern of your 
Company include selection of an appropriate project, funding of the said project and selection of a financial partner 
for execution of the project.

6.  INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS & THEIR ADEQUACY

 Adequate systems of internal control are in place to safeguard the assets of the Company.
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7.  FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

 Due to suspension of work, there was no operating activity during the year under review.  The Company suffered a 
loss of Rs. 23.47 lakhs during the year. Carry forward loss till the year end accounts to Rs. 3747.76 lakhs.

8.  HUMAN RESOURCE & INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
 After closure of the factory the entire dues of those were payable to the employees by the company have been fully 

settled.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The quarterly and annual financial results are published in the newspapers viz Business Standard (English) and 
Sukhabar (Bengali, Regional Language). The financial results and the official news releases are also placed on the 
Company's website www.senboindustries.co.in.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual General Meeting

Date and time :  29th September, 2018 at 10:00 A.M.

Venue  :  Karbala, Sonarpur Station Road, Kolkata-700 103

Profile of  Directors who can be re-appointed / appointed

The profile of the Directors who are eligible for re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting is furnished below :

Brief profile of the Directors and nature
of their experience in functional areas

Directorship/ Committee
membership in

other Companies

Shareholdings in Senbo
Industries Limited

Nil

Shri Kingshuk Sengupta is a graduate in Commerce 
having vast experience in construction industry and 
administration.

1,22,900 Senbo Engineering Limited

Senbo Engineering Limited

Shri Harijiban Banerjee is a cost accountant by 
profession. He was also the president of the Institute of 
Cost Accountants of India during the years 1995-1996. 
He has about 45 years of vast experience in finance, 
accounting, & costing.

NIL

Financial Year
st stThe Company follows financial year from 1  April to 31  March. 

Indicative events of the Company for the Year 2018 -19 (April – March) excluding Extra Ordinary General Meeting(s), if 

any, are as under:

th First Quarter Financial Results Sent within 14  August, 2018
th Second Quarter Financial Results To be sent within 14  November, 2018
th Third Quarter Financial Results To be sent within 14  February, 2019
th Fourth Quarter Financial Results To be sent within 30  May, 2019

th Annual General Meeting  Within 30  September, 2019

Date of Book Closure

The next Book Closure will be from 24th September, 2018 to 29th September, 2018 (both days inclusive for the purpose of 
AGM).

Dividend Payment Date
In view of the continuous loss incurred by the Company, no dividend has been recommended for the year, 2017-18.
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Listing on Stock Exchange

Shares of the Company are listed with the Stock Exchanges like Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE Ltd) and Bombay Stock 
Exchange (BSE Ltd).

Stock Code

a)  Stock Code of Stock Exchange at Mumbai :  532021

b)  Stock Code of Stock Exchange at Kolkata :  10029214

c)  Demat / ISIN Number 

 In NSDL and CDSL for Equity Shares of the Company: INE792C01010

Market Price Data 

Market price data - Monthly high/low of the closing price of the Equity shares of the Company and trading volumes on BSE 
are given hereunder for the period from April 2017 to March 2018.

Month High Price (Rs.) Low Price (Rs.) No. of Shares

April 2017 No changes

May 2017 No changes

June 2017 8.20 8.20 7

July 2017 7.79 7.41 14

August 2017 7.70 7.10 16

September 2017 No changes

October 2017 No changes

November 2017 7.00 6.10 1,039

December 2017 No changes

January 2018 No changes

February 2018 No changes

March 2018 6.40 6.10 2,736

* Company's shares has been suspended in the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited

Compliance Officer

Shri Rahul Kumar Singh, Company Secretary, was the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for complying with   
requirements of Securities Laws and Listing Regulations with Stock Exchanges upto 08.01.2018. However after 
resignation of Shri Rahul Kumar Singh on 8th January, 2018, Ms. Paulami Mukherjee was appointed as the Company 
Secretary and Compliance officer of the company from 14.02.2018.    

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Niche Technologies Private Limited
D 511, Bagri Market, 71, B.R.B. Basu Road, Kolkata – 700 001
Phones:-2235-7271/7270/3070, Fax: - 2215-6823
E-Mail:- nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com

Share Transfer System

Share Transfer Requests are processed and the Certificates are returned within 15 days from the date of receipt. In 
pursuance of SEBI Guidelines the Company is now offering the facility of Share Transfer-cum-Demat. If a shareholder 
desires to have Demat he is to approach the Depository Participant (DP) with the option letter of the Company. After 
processing the request the DP sends the option letter to the Company and on receipt of the same the Company 
dematerializes those shares. In case of a transferee not opting for dematerialization the Company dispatches the Share 
Certificates immediately. 
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 No. of Shares

CDSL 1236744

NSDL 6216011

Physical Shares 3547245

Total Paid-Up Capital 11000000

Dematerialization of Shares

The shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form with effect from 29th April, 2001. Accordingly, 
the Company entered into agreements with NSDL on 15th January, 2001 and CDSL on 4th January, 2001. Till 31st March, 
2018, the Company processed dematerialization requests for 74,43,755 shares which represents 67.67 % of the shares 
issued.

stDistribution of Shareholding as on 31  March, 2018

stShareholding Pattern of the Company as on 31  March, 2018 

Sl.No. Number of Shares No. of Holders % of  Total Shareholders Total Shares % of Total Shares

1. Upto 500 726 54.84 2,19,763 2.00

2. 501  to 1,000 422 31.87 3,62,468 3.30

3. 1,001 to 5,000 125 9.44 2,91,827 2.65

4. 5,001 to 10,000 14 1.06 1,03,443 0.94

5. 10,001 to 50,000 7 0.53 1,66,100 1.51

6. 50,001 to 1,00,000 4 0.30 3,07,300 2.79

7. 1,00,001 and above 26 1.96 95,49,099 86.81

 Total 1324 100.00 11,000,000 100.00

Category (No. of Shares) Total Shares % of Total Shares
  representing the Category

Promoters:  

Indian 6,20,1300 56.37
Foreign - -

Total Promoters' 6,20,1300 56.37

Persons Acting in Concert:  

Institutional Investors:  
Mutual Funds 14,900 0.135
Banks, FI, etc 355,800 3.235
Foreign Institutional Investors - -

Others:  
Private Corporate Bodies 6,79,307 6.176
Indian Public 35,35,590 32.13
NRIs / OCBs 210,299 1.91
Any Other 2,804 0.024

Total Non-Promoters' 47,98,700 43.63

Grand Total 11,000,000 100.00
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OUTSTANDING GDR / ADR / WARRANTS OR ANY CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS, CONVERSION DATE AND 

LIKELY IMPACT ON EQUITY

The Company has not issued any GDR / ADR / Warrants / Convertible instruments and hence there is no impact on the 
Equity Shares of the Company due to conversion of above instruments.

PLANT LOCATION

Senbo Industries Limited, Karbala, Sonarpur Station Road, P.O. Sonarpur, Kolkata 700 103.

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE

Senbo Industries Limited

87, Lenin Sarani, Kolkata 700 013

Phone: 033 2217 8915 / 8916, Fax: 033 2265 9485 / 2217 8917 

E-mail: senboind@gmail.com , Website: www.senboindustries.co.in

CERTIFICATE

The company has obtained the Certificate from CA Sumit Agrawal, Practicing Chartered Accountant of Agrawal & Kothari, 
Chartered Accountants regarding compliance of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Chapter IV of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 and the same is annexed.

All material requirements with respect to Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 
have been complied with.    

CEO/CFO Certification

In accordance with provisions of Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, CEO/ CFO certification is attached 
to this report. 

 Harijiban Banerjee Kingshuk Sengupta

  DIN: 00627508 DIN: 00329102
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To

The Board of Directors,

Senbo Industries Limited

I, the undersigned, in my respective capacities as the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of Senbo Industries Limited (the 
Company), to the best of my knowledge and belief, certify that:

(a) I have reviewed the Financial Statements read with the Cash Flow Statement of Senbo Industries Limited for the 
year ending 31st March, 2018 and state that to the best of my knowledge and belief:                  

 i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading;

 ii. these statements present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) I further state that to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the 
year which are fraudulent, illegal or otherwise in violation of the Company's Code of Conduct.

(c) I further accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal control for financial reporting. I have 
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control system of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have 
disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if 
any, of which I am aware and steps taken or proposed to be taken for rectifying such deficiencies.

(d) I have indicated, based on my recent evaluation, to the auditors and the Audit Committee:

 i. Significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year.

 ii. Significant changes, if any, in accounting policies made during the year and that the same have been 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

 iii. instance of significant fraud of which I have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system over 
financial reporting.

 Kajal Sengupta

 Chief Executive Officer

Place : Kolkata
Dated : 14th August, 2018

Declaration:

Compliance with Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

The Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the 
year ended 31st  March, 2018.

CEO Certification

For Senbo Industries Limited

   Kajal Sengupta

Chief Executive Officer

Place : Kolkata, 

Dated : 14th August, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of 

Senbo Industries Limited
Kolkata
 
Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Senbo Industries Limited (“The Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of 
Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
specified under section 133 of the Act., read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are 
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

 We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that 
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates 
made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Ind AS aforesaid 
standalone financial statements, subject to

 Note: 15 regarding loan convert into cumulative redeemable preference Share.

 Note: 16 on non-receipt of Party confirmations regarding Sundry Creditors Rs. 63.59 lakhs.
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 Note: 17 regarding Liabilities written back – Municipality Tax, Khajna and reduction in rental income, with 
retrospective effect from 1st  April, 2016.

 Note: 21 Regarding sharing of expenses with a group company resulting in reduction in expenditure, with 
retrospective effect from 1st  April, 2016.

 Note: 5e an investment property of the Company at Sonarpur has remained mortgaged as collateral security 
with a bank to secure the credit facilities of Senbo Engineering Ltd., a group company which had 
earlier provided substantial loans to the Company. However, the said credit facilities taken from 
Oriental Bank of Commerce by Senbo Engineering Limited have turned into Non Performing Asset 
on 31st January, 2018.

Read together with other notes therein, give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2018, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity 
for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 and the transition date opening 
balance sheet as at April 1, 2016 prepared in accordance with Ind AS, included in these Ind AS financial statements, have 
been audited by the predecessor auditor who had audited the financial statements for the relevant periods. The report of 
the predecessor auditor on the comparative financial information and the opening balance sheet dated May 30th, 2017 
and 2016 respectively expressed a modified opinion on those financial statements, and have been restated to comply 
with Ind AS, adjustments made to the previously issued said financial information prepared in accordance with the 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 to comply with Ind AS have been audited by us.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“The Order”) issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a Statement on the matters specified in 
Paragraphs 3 & 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we Report that :

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from 
our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow 
Statement dealt and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid IND AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standard ( Ind AS) 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act;

e.       On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2018, taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018, from being appointed as a 
Director in terms Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”; and 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations and certificate given to us:

i. The pending litigations of the Company would not have any impact on its financial position.
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contract including derivative contract and as such no provision is 
required to be made for any likely material losses arising there from.  

iii. The Company has never declared any dividend in its life time and therefore, there is no need to transfer any 
amount to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

For   Agrawal & Kothari
 Chartered Accountants

                    (Firm's Regn. No 323424E)

 Sumit Agrawal
 Partner

Membership No.: 058302

Place:  Kolkata

Date: 30.05.2018       

Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016
ANNEXURE “A” TO AUDITORS' REPORT
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of 

'Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements' of our Report)

1. In respect of its Fixed Assets:

 a. The Company has updated its Fixed Assets Register to show full particulars including quantitative details 
and situation of Fixed Assets left after sale of substantial Part of Plant & Machinery during earlier years. 

 b. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Fixed Assets were physically verified by the 
management and no material discrepancies were noticed.

 c. According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the title deeds of Immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

2. As explained to us, the inventory has been physically verified by the management at the year end. We 
understand that no material discrepancy was noticed during verification. 

3. The Company has provided guarantee against loan taken by the a group company Senbo Engineering Ltd the 
details of the same has been provided in the note- 5e to the financial statement apart from that no loans to 
parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of The Companies Act, 2013 have been granted 
by the company. 

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with 
the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans & investments made.

5. On the basis of documents examined & information received, we understand that the Company has not 
accepted any deposits from the public in pursuance of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 
Act. 

6. According to information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed 
maintenance of cost records u/s 148 (1) of the Act, for any product of the Company.

7. In respect of Statutory dues:

 a. According to the records of the Company, there were no outstanding undisputed dues over 6 months 
which remained unpaid as on 31st March, 2018; except in respect of TDS  Rs. 28,800/-.

 b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no disputed amounts payable in 
respect of income tax, sales tax, vat, customs duty, excise duty or dues payable to any other Statutory 
and/or Local Authority as at 31st March, 2018.  
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8. As per records produced before us, the Company has not defaulted in payment of dues to any Financial 
Institution, Bank, and Government or debentures holders. 

9. As per records produced before us, the Company has not raised any moneys by way of any public offer or term 
loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

10. According to the information and explanation given to us, no material fraud by the company or on the company 
by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.  

11. According to the information and explanation given to us, Managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in 
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the 
Companies Act, except ratification of remuneration of one whole-time Director in the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting.  

12. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi 
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (VII) of the Order is not applicable.

13. According to the information and explanation given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in 
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, and the details have been 
disclosed in the Financial Statements etc as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment / private placement of shares or fully / partly 
convertible debentures during the year under review.

15. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected 
with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (XV) of the Order is not applicable.

16. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For   Agrawal & Kothari

 Chartered Accountants
                    (Firm's Regn. No 323424E)

 Sumit Agrawal
 Partner

Membership No.: 058302

Place:  Kolkata

Date: 30.05.2018       

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT
Report on Internal Financial Controls under

Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('The Act')

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Senbo Industries Limited (“the Company”) as of 
31st March, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
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Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (The 'Guidance Note') and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls, and, both issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all materials 
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal controls system 
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risk of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Company's internal financial control system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statement for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable details, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance 
with authorizations of the Management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have 
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating, effectively as at 31st March,2018, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For   Agrawal & Kothari

 Chartered Accountants
                    (Firm's Regn. No 323424E)

 Sumit Agrawal
 Partner

Membership No.: 058302

Place:  Kolkata

Date: 30.05.2018       
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Independent Auditors' Certificate
on compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance

as per provisions of Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To
The Members of
Senbo Industries Limited

We,  Agrawal & Kothari, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of Senbo Industries Limited (“the Company”), 
have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, for the year ended on 31 March 
2018, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and paras C and D of Schedule V of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the Listing Regulations).

Management's Responsibility

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This responsibility 
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure compliance with the 
conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for 
ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion 
on the financial statements of the Company.

We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the 
purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the 
Company.

We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India (the ICAI), the 
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose 
of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which 
requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control 
for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services 
Engagements.

Opinion

Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided to us and 
the representations provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of 
Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and paras C and D of 
Schedule V of the Listing Regulations during the year ended 31 March 2018. 

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For   Agrawal & Kothari

 Chartered Accountants
                    (Firm's Regn. No 323424E)

 Sumit Agrawal
 Partner

Membership No.: 058302

Place:  Kolkata

Date: 30.05.2018       



Particulars

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018

Kingshuk Sengupta
Director

Kajal Sengupta 
Chief Executive Officer 

Paulami Mukherjee
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board

Harijiban Banerjee
Director

In terms of our report of even date attached
For Kothari & Agrawal
Firms Regn. No. 323424E
Chartered Accountants

CA Sumit Agrawal- Partner
Membership No. 058302

Note
No.

 As at  
 31.03.2018

 

 As at  
 31.03.2017

 

 As at  
 01.04.2016

 

Kolkata
Dated : 30th May, 2018
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A ASSETS    
1 Non-current assets    
 a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4  13,94,225   15,35,973   16,77,721 
 b) Investment Property 5  2,15,66,955   2,29,18,475   2,42,69,995 
 c) Financial Assets    
       -   Other Financial Assets 6  14,07,492   14,07,492   12,09,715 
 d) Other Non-Current Assets 7  -     -     -      

 Total Non Current Assets   2,43,68,672  2,58,61,940 2,71,57,431     

2 Current assets    
 a) Inventories 8  34,91,795   34,91,795   34,91,795 
 b) Financial Assets    
       -  Trade Receivable 9  -     -     -   
       -  Cash and cash equivalent 10  46,965   65,995   20,46,633 
       -  Other Financial Assets 11  32,870   32,870   69,640 
 c) Other current assets 12  6,91,554   10,75,294   16,17,546     

 Total Current Assets   42,63,184   46,65,954   72,25,614     

 TOTAL ASSETS   2,86,31,856  3,05,27,894 3,43,83,045     

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
1 Equity    
 a) Share capital 13  10,84,79,000   10,84,79,000   10,84,79,000 
 b) Other equity 14  (28,44,43,839)  (28,20,96,325)  (27,88,63,198)     

 Total Equity   (17,59,64,839)  (17,36,17,325)  (17,03,84,198)     

 Liabilities    
2 Non-current liabilities    
 a) Financial Liabilities    
      -   Borrowing (Cumulative Redeemable
          Preference shares) 15  19,18,00,000   19,18,00,000   -     

 Total Non Current Liabilities   19,18,00,000   19,18,00,000   -     

3 Current-liablities    
 a) Financial Liabilities    
       -   Borrowings 15  -     -     19,18,07,753 
       -   Trade Payables    
           - Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 16  6,33,852   6,33,852   6,33,852 
           - Due to others 16  57,25,509   57,25,509   57,25,509     
 b) Other Current Liabilities 17  64,37,334   59,74,936   66,00,129 
 c) Provisions   -     10,922       

 Total Current Liabilities   1,27,96,695  1,23,45,219 20,47,67,243     

 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   2,86,31,856  3,05,27,894 3,43,83,045

(Amount in `) 
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Note
No.

 For year ended
 March 31, 2018

 

 For year ended
 March 31, 2017

 

Statement of Profit and Loss

Kingshuk Sengupta
Director

Kajal Sengupta 
Chief Executive Officer 

Paulami Mukherjee
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board

Harijiban Banerjee
Director

In terms of our report of even date attached
For Kothari & Agrawal
Firms Regn. No. 323424E
Chartered Accountants

CA Sumit Agrawal- Partner
Membership No. 058302

Kolkata
Dated : 30th May, 2018

I Revenue from Operations  - -      
II Other Income 18  9,67,138   12,23,548 
       
III Total Revenue (I + II)  9,67,138   12,23,548 
       
IV Expenses      
 Employee Benefits Expense 19  2,33,456   79,390 
 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 20  14,93,268   14,93,268 
 Other Expenses 21  12,03,657   26,33,709 
       
 Total Expenses   29,30,381   42,06,367 
       
V Profit before exceptional and tax (III - IV)  (19,63,243)  (29,82,819)
VI Exceptional items   -   - 
VII Profit before Tax (V - VI)   (19,63,243)  (29,82,819)
VIII Tax Expenses:      
  Current Tax   -   - 
  Deferred Tax Expenses / (Credit)   -   - 
  Tax for Earlier Year  3,84,271   2,50,308 

IX Profit/ (Loss) for the period (VII - VIII)  (23,47,514)  (32,33,127)

X Other Comprehensive Income      
 A(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  -   - 
 A(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be
        reclassified to profit or loss   -     -   
 B(i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss   -   - 
 B(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be
        reclassified to profit or loss   -   - 
 Other Comprehensive Income  -   - 
       
XI Total Comprehensive Income (IX+X)  (23,47,514)  (32,33,127)

XVI Earning per Equity Share:      
 (a) Basic - Rs.   (0.22)  (0.30)
 (b) Diluted -Rs.   (0.22)  (0.30)

(Amount in `) 
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Note
No.

 For the
Year ended

 March 31, 2018
 

Particulars
 For the

Year ended
 March 31, 2017

 
1 Cash from operating activities 
 Profit before tax (19,63,243) (29,82,819)
 Adjustments for :  
    - Depreciation and amortisation expenses  14,93,268  14,93,268 
    - Liabilities written back  -  (2,98,489)
    - Interest Income  (67,138)  (25,059)

 Operating profit before working capital changes (5,37,113)  (18,13,099)

 Inventories -   -   
 Trade Receivable  -   -   
 Other financial assets (current)  -  36,770 
 Other current assets  3,83,740 5,42,252 
 Other financial assets (non-current)  -  (1,97,777)
 Trade payable  -   -   
 Provisions  (10,922)  10,922 
 Other current liabilities  4,62,398   (6,25,193)

 Cash generated from operations  2,98,105  (20,46,125)
 Taxes paid  (3,84,271)  (2,50,308)

 Net cash provided by operating activities  (86,166)  (22,96,433)

2 Cash Flow from Investing activities  
 Interest received  67,138  25,059 
 Fixed Deposit (with original maturity more than 3 months)  -   -   

 Net Cash used in Investing Activities  67,138  25,059 

3 Cash Flow from Financing Activities
 Issue of preference shares  -  19,18,00,000 
 Repayment of short term borrowing  -  (19,18,07,753)
 Liabilities written back  -  2,98,489 

 Net cash used in Financing Activities  -   2,90,736

 Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent  (19,029)  (19,80,638)

 Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year  65,995  20,46,633 

 Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year  46,965  65,995 

 Short term fixed deposits  -   -   

 Cash and bank balances at the end of the year 46,965  65,995

Kingshuk Sengupta
Director

Kajal Sengupta 
Chief Executive Officer 

Paulami Mukherjee
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board

Harijiban Banerjee
Director

In terms of our report of even date attached
For Kothari & Agrawal
Firms Regn. No. 323424E
Chartered Accountants

CA Sumit Agrawal- Partner
Membership No. 058302

Kolkata
Dated : 30th May, 2018

(Amount in `) 



A) Equity Share Capital As at As at As at
  31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

 Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 10,84,79,000   10,84,79,000   10,84,79,000

 Changes in Equity Share capital during the year  -     -     - 

 Balance at the end of the reporting year  10,84,79,000   10,84,79,000   10,84,79,000

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2018

(Amount in `) 

Balances as at 1st April, 2016  9,11,30,000   15,00,000   50,000   (37,15,43,198)  -     (27,88,63,198)

Additions during the year:      

Profit for the year 2016-17     (32,33,127)   (32,33,127)

Balances as at 31st March, 2017  9,11,30,000   15,00,000   50,000   (37,47,76,325)  -     (28,20,96,325)

Additions during the year:      

Profit for the year 2017-18     (23,47,514)   (23,47,514)

Balances as at 31st March, 2018  9,11,30,000   15,00,000   50,000   (37,71,23,839)  -     (28,44,43,839)

Other Equity

Reserve and Surplus

Capital Reserve
Capital Subsidy

(Govt. of
West Bengal)

General
Reserve

Retained
Earnings

Other
Comprehensive

Income

Total Equity 
B)  Other Equity

(Amount in `) 
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Notes to the Financial Statements  

1 General Information 

 Senbo Industries Ltd., incorporated in 1994 as private limited company it was converted into public limited company in 
1996, when it went public. On it maiden public issue in this year the company has issued 11000000 equity shares of 
Rs.10/- each. The company is into manufacture of Intravenous Fluids (I V Fluids) with an installed capacity of 18000000 
nos. of bottles(as on March 31, 2001)  

2 Significant Accounting Policies: 

 The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies 
have been consistently applied to all the years presented,unless otherwise stated.  

 a Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statements  

  Accounting Convention

  The financial statements are prepared in accordance with and in compliance, in all material aspect with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read along with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016 and other relevant provision of the Act. 

  For all periods upto and including the year ended March 31, 2017, the company prepared its financial statements in 
accordance with the Accounting Standards earlier notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read 
together with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

  These are the Company’s first annual financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. The Company has 
adopted all applicable standards and adoptions were carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 – First time adoption 
of Indian Accounting Standards. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the reported financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company is provided in note 22 of these financials. 

  Basis of measurement

  The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance with the historical cost 
convention, unless otherwise stated. All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current generally 
based on the criteria of realisation/settlement within a twelve month period from the balance sheet date. 

 b Property, Plant and Equipment

  Property, plant and equipment are stated at original cost net of tax / duly credit availed, less accumulated 
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depreciation and accumulated impairement losses, if any. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment 
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company derecognises the replaced part, and recognises the new part 
with its own associated useful life and it is depreciated accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, 
its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognisation criteria 
is satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. The 
present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its use is included in the cost of the 
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

 Internally manufactured property, plant and equipment are capitalised at factory cost, including excise duty, 
whenever applicable.

 Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from financial statement, either on disposal or when retired from 
financial statement, either on disposal or retired from active use. Losses arising in the case of retirement of property, 
plant and equipment and gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss in the year of occurenece.

 The assets' residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year and 
adjusted prospectively, if appropiate.

 Depreciation on straight line method on the property, plant and equipment is provided over the useful life of assets as 
specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Property, plant and equipment which are added / disposed off 
during the year, depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of addition/deletion.   

 c Investment Properties

   Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the 
company, are classified as Investment Property. These are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment loss, if any. Subsequent expenditure related to investment properties are added to its book 
value only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. Investment properties are depreciated using the straight line method over 
the useful lives.   

 d Impairment of tangible 

   Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which 
the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair 
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the 
lowest possible levels for which there are independent cash inflows (cash-generating units).   

 e Financial Instruments: Financial Assets
   The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

 Financial assets at amortised cost

  Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of 
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost.These are presented as current assets, except for those 
maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets. Financial assets 
are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently, if maturing after 12 months period, using 
the effective interest method, less any impairment loss. Debt instruments which do not meet the criteria of amortised 
cost are measured at fair value and classified as fair value through profit and loss or through other comprehensive 
income, as applicable. Financial assets at amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, security deposits, 
cash and cash equivalents, employee and other advances. 

   Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

  All fair value changes on the investment are recognised in OCI. The accumulated gains or losses recognised in OCI 
are reclassified to retained earnings on sale of such investments.  

  Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

  Financial assets which are not classified in any of the categories above are fair valued through profit or loss (FVTPL).  

   Impairment of financial assets

  The Company assesses expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and fair value 
through other comprehensive income based on Company’s past history of recovery, credit-worthiness of the counter 
party and existing market conditions. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk. For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach for recognition 



of impairment allowance as provided in Ind AS 109, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from 
initial recognition of the receivables.

  Financial Liabilities: Initial recognition and measurement
 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in case of loans and borrowings net of directly 

attributable costs. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. 
For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying value approximates 
fair value due to short maturity of these instruments.  

 f Fair value measurement
  The Company classifies the fair value of its financial instruments in the following hierarchy, based on the inputs used 

in their valuation.

  Level 1 - The fair value of financial instruments quoted in active markets is based on their quoted closing price at the 
balance sheet date.   

  Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using 
valuation techniques using observable market data. Such valuation techniques include discounted cash flows, 
standard valuation models based on market parameters for interest rates, yield curves or foreign exchange rates, 
dealer quotes for similar instruments and use of comparable arm's length transactions.   

  Level 3 - The fair value of financial instruments that are measured on the basis of entity specific valuations using 
inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

 g Inventory
   Inventories of raw materials, packaging materials, fuel, stores & spares if any are valued at lower of procurement cost 

(weighted average basis) and net realisable value.    

 h Employee Benefits
   The provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and The Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous 

Provisions Act, 1952 are not applicable to the Company as the number of employees are less than prescribed limits 
under respective Acts.

 i Provisions
   Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 

event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of 
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the 
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted 
to reflect the current best estimates. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted. The 
discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as interest expense.   

 j Income Tax

   Current Income Tax

   Current Income Tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with Income 
Tax Act, 1961.   

   Deferred Tax
   Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets 

and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets 
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. The tax 
rates and tax laws used to compute the tax are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
Current income tax/deferred tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the 
statement of profit and loss.   

   Minimum Alternate Tax
   According to section 115JAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, Minimum Alternative Tax ('MAT') paid over and above the 

normal income tax in a subject year is eligible for carry forward for fifteen succeeding assessment years for set-off 
against normal income tax liability. The MAT credit asset is assessed against the Company's normal income tax 
during the specified period. 

  

47



 k Revenue Recognition

   Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents amounts stated 
net of discounts and returns. The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably 
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have 
been met for each of the Company's activities, as described below. The Company bases its estimate of return on 
historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each 
arrangement.   

   Sale of goods and services

   Sales are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership in the goods are transferred to the buyer as 
per the terms of contract, which generally coincides with the delivery of the product. Income and fees from services 
are accounted as per terms of relevant contractual agreements /arrangements. The products are often sold with sales 
related discounts such as volume discounts, customer rebates, trade support and listing costs and consumer 
promotional activities as billed by customers. Sales are recorded based on the price specified in the sales contracts, 
net of the estimated discounts/rebates and returns at the time of sale. Accumulated experience is used to estimate 
and provide for the discounts and returns.   

    Interest Income and Dividend Income

   Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the 
company reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at 
the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest 
income on impaired loans and receivables is recognised using the original effective interest rate. Dividend income is 
recognised when the right to receive payment is established. Income from investments are accounted on an accrual 
basis.

  Rental Income

   Rental Income have been recognised in the accounts as per the terms of Agreements with the tenants.   

 l Borrowing Costs

   Borrowing costs consist of interest, ancillary and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing 
of funds and interest relating to other financial liabilities. Borrowing costs also include exchange differences to the 
extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended 
use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which 
they occur.   

 m Exceptional Items

   Exceptional items are disclosed separately in the financial statements where it is necessary to do so to provide further 
understanding of the financial performance of the company. These are material items of income or expense that have 
to be shown separately due to their nature or incidence.   

 n Earnings per share

   The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share is 
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the 
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, 
adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.   

 o Contingent Liabilities

   Contingent liabilities exist when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence obligation arising 
from past events, the existence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control 
of the Company, or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required or the amount cannot be reliably estimated. Contingent liabilities are appropriately 
disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.   

 p Cash and cash equivalents

   Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flow, comprises of cash at bank, in 
hand, bank overdrafts and short term highly liquid investments/bank deposits with an original maturity of three months 
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes 
in value.   
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 q Events after the reporting period

   Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period. 
The financial statements are adjusted for such events before authorisation for issue. Non-adjusting events are events 
that are indicative of conditions that arose after the end of the reporting period. Non-adjusting events after the 
reporting date are not accounted, but disclosed.   

 r Key accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions

   The preparation of the financial statements requires management to exercise judgment and to make estimates and 
assumptions. These estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experiences and various other 
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affect only that period, or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

  The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

   Depreciation and amortisation

   Depreciation and amortisation is based on management's estimate of the future useful lives of the Property, Plant and 
Equipment and Intangible Assets. Estimates may change due to technological developments, competition, changes in 
market conditions and other factors and may result in changes in the estimated useful life and in the depreciation and 
amortisation charges.

   Fair Value of Financial Instruments

   All financial instruments are required to be fair valued as at the balance sheet date, as provided in Ind AS 109 and 113. 
Being a critical estimate, judgement is exercised to determine the carrying values. The fair value of financial 
instruments that are unlisted and not traded in an active market is determined at fair values assessed based on recent 
transactions entered into with third parties, based on valuation done by external appraisers etc., as applicable.

 s Segment-wise Reporting

   Not applicable since at present there is no business activity of the Company.

 t Foreign Currency Transaction

   Where applicable foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing at the transaction 
date. Year end assets and liabilities in foreign currency are translated at the applicable year end exchange rates and 
the resultant difference is recognised as gain / loss for the year.

3 Disclosure as per IND AS 101 on "First time adoption"       

  Exemptions and exceptions availed

  These financial statements, for the year ended 31st March, 2018, are the first, the company has prepared in 
accordance with Ind AS. For the periods up to and including the year ended 31st March, 2017, the Company prepared 
its financial statements in accordance with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 
2013, read with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).   

  Accordingly, the company has prepared its financial statements to comply with Ind AS for the year ending 31st March, 
2018, together with comparative date as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2017, as described in the summary of 
significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial statements, the company's opening balance sheet was 
prepared as at 1st April, 2016, the company's date of transition to Ind AS.        

  In preparing these Ind AS financial statements, the Company has availed certain exemptions and exceptions in 
accordance with Ind AS 101, as explained below. The resulting difference between the carrying values of the assets 
and liabilities in the financial statements as at the transition date under Ind AS and Previous GAAP have been 
recognised directly in equity (retained earnings or another appropriate category of equity).     

  A Optional Exemptions from retrospective application

    Optional Exemptions from retrospective application Ind AS 101 permits first-time adopters certain exemptions 
from retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has elected to apply the 
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following optional exemptions from retrospective application: 

    1)  Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment 

      The Company has elected to measure all its property, plant and equipment  at the Previous GAAP carrying 
amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS.       

    2)  Deemed cost for investment property

      The Company has elected to measure all its investment property at the Previous GAAP carrying amount as its 
deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS.       

  B Mandatory Exceptions from retrospective application 

    The following mandatory exceptions have been applied in accordance with Ind AS 101 in preparing the financial 
statements.       

    (a) Estimates

      The estimates as at 1st April, 2016 and 31st March, 2017 are consistent with those made for the same dates 
in accordance with Indian GAAP(after adjustments to reflect any differences if any, in accounting policies). 
The estimates used by the company to present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions 
as at the transition date and as of 31st March, 2017.       

    (b)  Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

      The company has elected to apply the derecognition requirements for financial assets and financial liabilites 
in Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS.

    (c)   Classification and measurement of financial assets

      The company has classified the financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and 
circumtances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

  Cost:          

  Gross carrying value as at 01.04.2016 85,24,051 73,62,313 12,66,372 94,20,146 2,65,72,882

  Additions  -  -   -  -  -

  Deletions - - -   -  -

  Gross carrying value as at 31.03.2017 85,24,051 73,62,313 12,66,372 94,20,146 2,65,72,882

  Additions  -   -  -  -  -

  Deletions                                  -   -  -  -  -

  Gross carrying value as at 31.03.2018 85,24,051 73,62,313 12,66,372 94,20,146 2,65,72,882

  Accumulated Depreciation     -

  As at 01.04.2016 80,97,849  69,67,490 12,03,055 86,26,767 2,48,95,161

  Depreciation for the year -  8,904  -   1,32,844 1,41,748

  Accumulated Depreciation on deletions    -   -  -  -  -

  As at 31.03.2017 80,97,849 69,76,394 12,03,055 87,59,611 2,50,36,909

  Depreciation -  8,904 - 1,32,844 1,41,748

  Accumulated Depreciation on deletions  - - -  - -

  As at 31.03.2018                80,97,849 69,85,298 12,03,055 88,92,455 2,51,78,657

  Net Book Value:     -

  As at 01.04.2016 4,26,202 3,94,823 63,317 7,93,379 16,77,721

  As at 31.03.2017 4,26,202 3,85,919  63,317 6,60,535 15,35,973

  As at 31.03.2018                  4,26,202 3,77,015 63,317 5,27,691 13,94,225

Particulars 

4  Property, Plant & Equipment          

Plant &
Equipment 

Furniture and
Fittings 

Office
Equipments 

Electrical
Installation 

Total

(Amount in `) 
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5  Investment Property 
        
          
  

Land  Particulars Building Total

Cost:

Gross carrying value as at 01.04.2016                       63,82,560        4,58,35,917 5,22,18,477

Additions  -                               -  -

 Deletions  -                               -   -  

 Gross carrying value as at 31.03.2017 63,82,560        4,58,35,917 5,22,18,477 

 Additions -                               -  -   

 Deletions  -                               -  -   

 Gross carrying value as at 31.03.2018 63,82,560        4,58,35,917 5,22,18,477 

 Accumulated Depreciation:   -   

 As at 01.04.2016  -          2,79,48,482  2,79,48,482 

 Depreciation for the year - 13,51,520 13,51,520 

 Accumulated Depreciation on deletions -                               - -   

 As at 31.03.2017                                        -          2,93,00,002 2,93,00,002 

 Depreciation                                        -              13,51,520 13,51,520 

 Accumulated Depreciation on deletions                                        -                               -  -   

 As at 31.03.2018                                        -          3,06,51,522 3,06,51,522 

 Net Book Value:     -   

 As at 01.04.2016                       63,82,560        1,78,87,435 2,42,69,995 

 As at 31.03.2017                       63,82,560        1,65,35,915  2,29,18,475 

 As at 31.03.2018                       63,82,560        1,51,84,395 2,15,66,955

Note:           

a. The above land and building lies vacant with a part of it given to its group company on rental. Hence, according to the 
Company's intention to hold the above properties for earning rental and for capital appreciation, as on the date of 
transition to Ind AS, it is treated as 'Investment Property' as per Ind AS 40.

b. On transition to Ind AS, the Company has opted to measure its investment properties as per the carrying value 
according to the previous GAAP.

c. The fair values of the above 'Investment Properties', as valued by an independent valuer, are as given below:
     - Land Rs. 40.57 crores      
     - Building Rs. 4.74 crores           

d. The amounts recognised in profit or loss for:
    - Rental income from investment property Rs. 9,00,000/-    
    - Direct operating expenses 
       (including repairs and maintenance):      
  - for generating rental income Nil     
  - not for generating rental income Nil     
  - Depreciation        
 - for building   Rs.13,51,520/-         

e. The above investment properties of the Company at Sonarpur has remained mortgaged as collateral security with a 
bank to secure the credit facilities of Senbo Engineering Ltd., a group company which had earlier provided substantial 
loans to the Company. However, the said credit facilities taken from Oriental Bank of Commerce by Senbo 
Engineering Limited have turned into Non Performing Asset on 31st January 2018.           

f. Depreciated at 'Straight Line Method' as per the residual value and useful life specified in Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

(Amount in `) 
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Note 
As at

1st April, 2016
As at

31st March, 2017
As at

31st March, 2018

Notes :The advance of Rs, 48,02,161/- represents the payment 
to M/s. Base Engineering,for renovation work of the Factory. 
The contract was, however, terminated due to non compliance 
of the conditions of the contract.Though the matter is sub-judice 
full provision has been made in the accounts.

6 Other financial assets       

  Non-current      
  (Unsecured, Considered good)      
  a) Security Deposits            10,15,702             10,15,702                 9,93,148 
  b) Earnest Deposits                  55,500                   55,500                     55,500 
  c) Fixed Deposit with a scheduled Bank
  as Margin Money for Guarantee (Maturity
  period beyond one year from the reporting date)               3,36,290                3,36,290                 1,61,067 

  Total 14,07,492          14,07,492           12,09,715

7 Other non-current assets        

  Non-current      
  (Unsecured, Considered good)      
  a) Advance recoverable in cash or in kind or
  for value to be received            48,02,161             48,02,161              48,02,161 
  Less: Provision for doubtful debts            48,02,161             48,02,161              48,02,161 

 Total -                               -                                 - 

8 Inventories
 (At lower of cost and net realisable value)   

 Stores and spares 34,91,795   34,91,795   34,91,795

 Total 34,91,795   34,91,795   34,91,795

9 Trade Receivables   
 Unsecured and considered doubtful 1,19,94,763   1,19,94,763   1,19,94,763 
 Less: Allowance for unsecured bad and doubtful debts  1,19,94,763   1,19,94,763   1,19,94,763

 Total -     -     -

10 Cash and cash equivalents   
 a) Balances with bank   
  -  Current accounts 22,687   41,879   18,72,973 
 b) Cash on hand  24,278   24,116   35,032 
 c) Term Deposit with a scheduled Bank as
  Margin Money for Guarantee  -     -     1,38,628

 Total 46,965   65,995   20,46,633

11 Other financial assets   
 Current   
 (Unsecured, Considered good)   
 a) Interest accrued on fixed deposit  32,870   32,870   69,640

 Total 32,870   32,870   69,640

(Amount in `) 
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Note 
As at

1st April, 2016
As at

31st March, 2017
As at

31st March, 2018

Number of
Shares Amounts

As at 31st March, 2018

Number of
Shares Amounts

As at 31st March, 2017

Number of
Shares Amounts

As at 31st March, 2016

Number of
Shares Amounts

As at 31st March, 2018

Number of
Shares Amounts

As at 31st March, 2017

Number of
Shares Amounts

As at 31st March, 2016

13 Equity Share Capital      
 (a) Authorised      
 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- par value per share 1,20,00,000   12,00,00,000   1,20,00,000   12,00,00,000   1,20,00,000   12,00,00,000       

 (b) Issued       
 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- par value per share  1,10,00,000   11,00,00,000   1,10,00,000   11,00,00,000   1,10,00,000   11,00,00,000       

 (c) Subscribed and fully paid up      
 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- par value per share  1,06,20,200   10,62,02,000   1,06,20,200   10,62,02,000   1,06,20,200   10,62,02,000       

 (c) Subscribed but not fully paid up      
 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- par value per share  3,79,800   22,77,000   3,79,800   22,77,000   3,79,800   22,77,000       

 Total  1,10,00,000   10,84,79,000   1,10,00,000   10,84,79,000   1,10,00,000   10,84,79,000       

(a) Terms/ rights attached to each shares:      
 The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote 

per share.       

 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of 
all preferential amounts.      

       
(b) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

 Equity Shares     
       

 
 (a) Fully paid      
      At the beginning of the year  1,06,20,200   10,62,02,000   1,06,20,200   10,62,02,000   1,06,20,200   10,62,02,000 
      Add: Issued during the year  -     -     -     -     -     -   
      At the end of the year  1,06,20,200   10,62,02,000   1,06,20,200   10,62,02,000   1,06,20,200   10,62,02,000 
       
 (b) Not fully paid       
      At the beginning of the year  3,79,800   22,77,000   3,79,800   22,77,000   3,79,800   22,77,000 
      Add: Issued during the year  -     -     -     -     -     -   
      At the end of the year  3,79,800   22,77,000   3,79,800   22,77,000   3,79,800   22,77,000 

12 Other current assets   
 (Unsecured, Considered good)   
 a) Advances other than capital advances   
  -  Advance for expenses  -     400   -   
  -  Advance to party  -     20,064   -   
 b) Others   
  -  Prepaid expenses  -     28,776   7,10,810 
  -  Rent receivable  1,92,131   2,66,023   -   
  -  TDS Receivable  4,57,344   7,60,031   9,06,736 
  -  Income Tax Receivable  42,079   -     -

 Total 6,91,554   10,75,294   16,17,546

Particulars

(Amount in `) 

(Amount in `) 

(Amount in `) 
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Number of
Shares

% holding in
that class of shares

As at 31st March, 2018

Number of
Shares

As at 31st March, 2017

Number of
Shares

As at 31st March, 2016

% holding in
that class of shares

% holding in
that class of shares

Equity shares with voting rights      
   -   Kajal Sengupta  21,08,200  19%  21,08,200  19%  21,08,200  19%
   -   Sayantanee Sengupta  12,27,000  11%  12,27,000  11%  12,27,000  11%
   -   Eleena Sengupta  11,70,100  11%  11,70,100  11%  11,70,100  11%
   -   Embicon Engineering Private Limited  9,25,000  8%  9,25,000  8%  9,25,000  8%     

(c)  Details of shares held by shareholding more than 5% of aggregate shares of the company

As at
1st April, 2016

As at
31st March, 2017

As at
31st March, 2018

14 Other Equity 
 Capital Reserve    
 Opening balance 9,11,30,000   9,11,30,000   -   
 Add: Addition during the year  -     -     -   
 Less: Deductions during the year -     -     -   
 Closing balance  9,11,30,000   9,11,30,000   9,11,30,000     

 Capital Subsidy (Govt. of West Bengal)    
 Opening balance 15,00,000   15,00,000   -   
 Add: Addition during the year -     -     - 
 Less: Deductions during the year -     -     -   
 Closing balance 15,00,000   15,00,000   15,00,000      

 General Reserve    
 Opening balance  50,000   50,000   -   
 Add: Addition during the year  -     -     -   
 Less: Deductions during the year  -     -     -   
 Closing balance 50,000   50,000   50,000     

 Retained Earnings    
 Opening balance  (37,47,76,325)  (37,15,43,198)  -   
 Add: Profit / (Loss) during the year (23,47,514)  (32,33,127)  -   
 Less:  Adjustments, if any, during the year  -     -     -   
 Closing balance (37,71,23,839)  (37,47,76,325)  (37,15,43,198)

 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)    
 Opening balance  -     -     - 
 Add: Addition during the year -     -     -   
 Less: Deductions during the year -     -     -   
 Closing balance -     -     -      

 Total (28,44,43,839)  (28,20,96,325)  (27,88,63,198)

15 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings 
 Non-current    
 (Unsecured)    
 Preference shares (refer note below) 19,18,00,000   19,18,00,000   -
  19,18,00,000   19,18,00,000   -
 Current    
 (Unsecured)    
 Loans and Advances from related parties -     -     19,18,07,753 

  -     -     19,18,07,753 

Name of shareholder 

Notes

(Amount in `) 

(Amount in `) 



Number of
Shares Amounts

As at 31st March, 2018

Number of
Shares Amounts

As at 31st March, 2017

Number of
Shares Amounts

As at 1st April, 2016

(a) Authorised      
 Cumulative Redeemable Preference

 shares of Rs. 100/- par value per share  20,00,000   20,00,00,000   20,00,000   20,00,00,000   -     -      

(b) Issued, Subscribed and
 Fully paid up      
 Cumulative Redeemable Preference

 shares of Rs. 100/- par value per share  19,18,000   19,18,00,000   19,18,000   19,18,00,000   -     -   

      
Total  19,18,000   19,18,00,000   19,18,000   19,18,00,000   -     -      

The entire Preference Shares were issued during the year by way of conversion of loan from two bodies corporate,
which was due for payment immediately. 

Note 

Note 

As at
1st April, 2016

As at
31st March, 2017

As at
31st March, 2018

16 Trade Payables
 Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 6,33,852   6,33,852   6,33,852 
 Due to others 57,25,509   57,25,509   57,25,509     

 Total  63,59,361   63,59,361   63,59,361

17 Other current liabilities 
 Other liabilities 64,37,334   59,74,936   66,00,129

 Total 64,37,334   59,74,936   66,00,129  

Note 
For the year

ended 31st March
2018

For the year
ended 31st March

2017

18 Other Income   
 Other non-operating income  
 Rental income   9,00,000   9,00,000 
 Interest earned on security deposit   25,059   25,059 
 Liabilities written back   -     2,98,489 
 Interest on Income Tax   42,079  -   

 Total   9,67,138   12,23,548

19 Employee benefit expenses   
 Salary, wages and bonus   2,23,416   79,250 
 Contributions/Provisions to and for Provident and Other Funds   10,000   -   
 Staff welfare   40   140   

 Total   2,33,456   79,390

20 Depreciation   
 Depreciation during the year   14,93,268   14,93,268   

 Total   14,93,268   14,93,268
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Particular

Particular

(Amount in `) 

(Amount in `) 

(Amount in `) 
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Note 
For the year

ended 31st March
2018

For the year
ended 31st March

2017

21 Other expenses   

 Power & Fuel (Electricity)   65,547   73,369 
 Advertisement   22,440   23,232 
 Bank Charges   13,727   1,700 
 Consultancy & Service Charges   78,000   1,11,300 
 Conveyance   209   14,310 
 Clerkage Fees  -   3,825 
 Forms, Fees, Registration & Others   1,34,058   18,90,274 
 Fees and Charges   4,601   2,100 
 Insurance Premium   28,776   29,626 
 Legal Expenses   18,000   12,000 
 Printing & Stationery   43,580   48,720 
 Profession Tax   2,500   2,500 
 Rent Paid   15,096   13,704 
 Subscription & Membership   2,50,000   2,01,125 
 Taxes & Duties   2,46,928   1,33,846 
 BSE Late Filing Fees   2,37,180   -   

 Payment to Auditor  
 As Auditor   25,000   24,000 
 For Other Services   12,000   27,000    

 Interest on delayed payment of Service Tax   -     7,294 
 Interest on delayed payment of P.Tax   63   80 
 Interest on Others   5,826   12,464 
 Interest on delayed payment of TDS   126   1,240   

 Total   12,03,657   26,33,709 

Notes:   

a. The full Salary of the Company Secretary has been taken in the employee benefit expenses of Senbo Industries Limited which 
in the previous year 25% was taken and the rest 75% was shared by a group Company, Senbo Engineering Limited.

b. In this year (2017-18) the expense like Khajna and Municipal Tax has been booked in the books Senbo Industries Limited while 
in the previous year this has been borne by Senbo Engineering Limited, a group company of Senbo Industries Limited.  

c. Expenses of Power and Fuel is being shared by a group company by payment of 90% of the electricity bills of the Tenant as per 
the Rent  Agreement agreeing to Rs.7,88,786.

22 Financial Instruments

 The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.     

 The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:       

 Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, other current liabilities, short term loans 
from banks and other financial institutions approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these 
instruments.     

 Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the company based on parameters such as 
interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account 
for the expected losses of these receivables, if any.     

(Amount in `) 
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 The company uses the following hierachy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by 
valuation technique:     

  Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities  

  Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded value are 
observable, either directly or indirectly     

  Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based 
on observable market data      

Particulars Fair value
through P&L

Fair value
through OCI

Amortised
cost

Total carrying
value

Total fair
value

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at 31st March, 2018 is as follows: 

Assets:     
Trade receivables (cuurent)    -     -    
Other financial assets(non current)    14,07,492   14,07,492  
Other financial assets(current)    32,870   32,870  
Cash and cash equivalent    46,965   46,965  

Total  -     -     14,87,327   14,87,327   -   

Liabilities:     
Borrowings(non-current)    19,18,00,000   
Trade and other payables(current)    63,59,361   

Total  -     -     19,81,59,361   -     - 

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at 31st March, 2017 is as follows:

Assets:     
Trade receivables(current)    -     -    
Other financial assets(non current)    14,07,492   14,07,492  
Other financial assets(current)    32,870   32,870  
Cash and cash equivalent    65,995   65,995  

Total  -     -     15,06,357   15,06,357   -   

Liabilities:     
Borrowings(non-current)    19,18,00,000   
Trade and other payables(current)    63,59,361   

Total  -     -     19,81,59,361   -     -

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at 1st April, 2016 is as follows:

Assets:     
Trade receivables(cuurent)    -     -    
Other financial assets(non current)    12,09,715   12,09,715  
Other financial assets(current)    69,640   69,640  
Cash and cash equivalent    20,46,633   20,46,633  

Total  -     -     33,25,988   33,25,988   -   

Liabilities:     
Borrowings(non-current)    -     
Borrowings(current)    19,18,07,753   
Trade and other payables(current)    63,59,361   

Total  -     -     19,81,67,114   -     -

(Amount in `) 
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22 (a) Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2016

Note
No.

 Indian GAAPParticulars  Adjustment Ind AS

ASSETS    

Non-current assets    

a) Property, Plant and Equipment A  2,59,47,716   (2,42,69,995) 16,77,721
b) Investment Property   -     2,42,69,995  2,42,69,995
c) Financial Assets    
      -   Other Financial Assets   10,48,648   1,61,067  12,09,715
d) Other Non-Current Assets   1,61,067   (1,61,067)  -    

Total Non Current Assets   2,71,57,431   -     2,71,57,431    

Current assets    
a) Inventories   34,91,795   -     34,91,795 
b) Financial assets    
      -   Trade Receivable   -      -   
      -   Cash and cash equivalent   20,46,633   -     20,46,633 
      -   Other Financial Assets   16,87,186   (16,17,546)  69,640 
c) Other current assets   -     16,17,546   16,17,546    

Total Current Assets   72,25,614   -     72,25,614    

TOTAL ASSETS   3,43,83,045   -     3,43,83,045    

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    

Equity    
a) Share capital   10,84,79,000   -     10,84,79,000 
b) Other equity E  (27,88,63,198)  -     (27,88,63,198)    

Total Equity   (17,03,84,198)  -     (17,03,84,198)

Liabilities    

Non-current liabilities    
a) Financial Liabilities    
     -    Borrowings   -     -     -    

Total Non Current Liabilities   -     -     -     

Current-liablities    
a) Financial Liabilities    
      -   Borrowings   19,18,07,753   -    19,18,07,753
      -   Trade Payables    
          - Due to Micro and Small Enterprises   6,33,852   -    6,33,852
          - Due to others   57,25,509   -    57,25,509    
b) Other Current Liabilities   66,00,129   -    66,00,129
c) Provisions    

Total Current Liabilities   20,47,67,243   -     20,47,67,243    

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   3,43,83,045   -     3,43,83,045    
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22 (b) Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017

Note
No.

 Indian GAAPParticulars  Adjustment Ind AS

ASSETS    

Non-current assets    

a) Property, Plant and Equipement A  2,44,54,448   (2,29,18,475) 15,35,973
b) Investment Property   -     2,29,18,475  2,29,18,475
c) Financial Assets    
 -   Other Financial Assets   10,71,202   3,36,290  14,07,492
d) Other Non-Current Assets   3,36,290   (3,36,290)  -  

Total Non Current Assets   2,58,61,940   -     2,58,61,940    

Current assets    
a) Inventories   34,91,795   -     34,91,795 
b) Financial assets    
      -   Trade Receivable   -      -   
      -   Cash and cash equivalent   65,995   -     65,995 
      -   Other Financial Assets   11,08,164   (10,75,294)  32,870 
c) Other current assets   -     10,75,294   10,75,294  

Total Current Assets   46,65,954   -     46,65,954    

TOTAL ASSETS   3,05,27,894   -     3,05,27,894     

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    

Equity    
a) Share capital   30,02,79,000   (19,18,00,000)  10,84,79,000 
b) Other equity E  (28,20,96,325)  -     (28,20,96,325)  

Total Equity   1,81,82,675   (19,18,00,000)  (17,36,17,325)

Liabilities    

Non-current liabilities    
a) Financial Liabilities    
     -    Borrowings   -     19,18,00,000   19,18,00,000  

Total Non Current Liabilities   -     19,18,00,000   19,18,00,000    

Current-liablities    

a) Financial Liabilities    
      -   Borrowings   -     -     -   
      -   Trade Payables    
          - Due to Micro and Small Enterprises   6,33,852   -    6,33,852
          - Due to others   57,25,509   -    57,25,509    
b) Other Current Liabilities   59,74,936   -    59,74,936
c) Provisions   10,922   -    10,922    

Total Current Liabilities   1,23,45,219   -     1,23,45,219    

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   3,05,27,894   -     3,05,27,894     
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22 (c)  Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31st March, 2017

Note
No.

 Indian GAAPStatement of Profit and Loss  Adjustment Ind AS

I Revenue from Operations       

II Other Income   12,23,548   -   12,23,548        

III Total Revenue (I + II)  12,23,548   -   12,23,548        

IV Expenses       
 Employee Benefits Expense C  79,390   -   79,390 
 Finance Costs       
 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense B  14,93,268   -   14,93,268
 Other Expenses   26,33,709   -   26,33,709        

 Total Expenses  42,06,367   -   42,06,367        

V Profit before exceptional and tax (III - IV)  (29,82,819)   (29,82,819)

VI Exceptional items   -    - 

VII Profit before Tax (V - VI)   (29,82,819)  -   (29,82,819)

VIII Tax Expenses:       
  Current Tax      
  Deferred Tax Expenses / (Credit)      
  Tax for Earlier Year   2,50,308    2,50,308 

IX Profit/ (Loss) for the period (VII - VIII)   (32,33,127)  -   (32,33,127)

X Other Comprehensive Income
 A(i) Items that will not be reclassified to
  profit or loss C   -  
 A(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be
  reclassified to profit or loss C   - 
 B(i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss      
 B(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be
  reclassified to profit or loss      

 Other Comprehensive Income        

XI Total Comprehensive Income (IX+X)   (32,33,127)  -   (32,33,127)

22 (d) Notes to the reconciliation of Equity as at 1st April, 2016 and 31st March, 2017 and total comprehensive 
income for the year ended 31st March, 2017.

A Recognition of Investment Property     
 For the first time investment properties are reclassified from PPE and presented separately amounting to  Rs. 

2,15,40,899 as at 31st March, 2018, (for 16-17 Rs. 2,29,18,475) due to requirement of Ind AS 40.

B Other Financial Assets (non-current)     
 Fixed deposits with maturity period more than 12 months, are classified as 'Other Financial Assets'.

C Other Financial Assets (current)     
 Accrued interest on fixed deposits, is classified as 'Other Financial Assets'.

D Financial Liabilities (non-current)     
 1918000, Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each, issued and subscribed, amounting to 

Rs.19,18,00,000/- are shown as 'Borrowings' under the Financial Liabilities, as per the requirement of Ind AS 32.      



1 Senbo Engineering Ltd. -  Rent 1,92,130 2,37,656 (Dr.) Rent  9,00,000 9,00,000
    Receivable

2 Senbo Engineering Ltd. - 
 Advance against rent 9,00,000 (Cr.) 9,00,000 (Cr.)   

3 Senbo Engineering Ltd. – Others NIL 77,734 (Dr.)   

4 Shri Rahul Kumar Singh
 (Resigned w.e.f 09.01.2018)

 Ms.Paulami Mukherjee
 (Joined from 14.02.2018)  1,09,489 (Cr.)" 1,00,065 (Cr.) Remuneration 1,12,497 79,250

     Paid

61

23 Certain expenditure like electricity charges have been shared with retrospective effect from 1st April, 2016 on 
realistic basis with a group company by Agreement.

24 In the opinion of the Management, the recoverable amount of the existing assets being higher than those of 
respective carrying amount of such assets, no impairment loss has arisen on the Balance Sheet date.

25 "Party confirmations in respect of outstanding balances for Sundry Debtors, Loans and Advances have been taken 
into consideration to the extent received.

26 Fixed Assets and Inventories of the Company situated at Sonarpur Factory have been physically verified by the 
Management during the year under review.  

27 During the year there was no transaction with micro, small and medium enterprises requiring separate disclosure 
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

28 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES  

 Disclosures as required under Accounting Standard 18 are given below:

 List of Related Parties:

 Associated Companies
 Senbo Engineering Limited
 Embicon Engineering Pvt. Ltd.
 Eleena Holdings Pvt. Ltd.    

 Key Management Personnel 
 Shri Kajal Sengupta - Chief Executive Officer
 Shri Rahul Kumar Singh - Company Secretary (resigned w.e.f. 09.01.2018)
 Ms Paulami Mukherjee - Company Secretary (appointed from 14.02.2018)

 Related Party Transactions during 2017 - 2018:

Sl.
No.

Related Party
Outstanding as

31.03.2018
Rs.

Outstanding as
31.03.2017

Rs.

Nature of
Transaction

Year ended
31.03.2018

Outstanding 
as 31.03.2018

Rs.

29       Figures for the previous year have been re-arranged and re-grouped wherever necessary. 
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Director
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Chief Executive Officer 
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